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SUEZ Reeyceling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Group strategic report
Tor the year eaded 31 December 2020

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2020,
Business review

The Group's key financial and other performance indicators for the year are as foliows:

2020 2019

£000 £000 Change
Reverniue 789,163 784,111 -0.6 %
Gross profit 132,951 114,981 +15.6%
Operating profit 25,764 37,044 -30.5%
(Loss)/profit afier tax (10,698) 13,883 -177.3%
Total Equity 365,559 385,319 -5.1%
Current assets as % of current liabilities 138% 139%
Average headcount 5,665 5,168

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Group {the Group) produced solid financial results in the vear ended 31
December 2020; especially in light of the global COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group's collection activitics were most impacted by the pandemic, with many customers temporarily closing down as
a result of the UK lockdown announced in March 2020. Consequently, our revenue from industrial and commercial
collections fell by £25m when compared with the prior year. However, these activities remained profitable before tax thanks
10 our strong recovery when lockdown restrictions eased in summer 2020 and cost optimisations te mitigate the volume
tmpacts.

The Greup started a major new Municipal collection contract on 30th March 2020 in Somerset, shortly after the nationwide
lockdown commenced. To successfully roll out such a large municipal contract in such circumstances was a fantastic
achievement. Planned service changes for this contract are being rolled out over the coming twoe years to improve efficiency
and the customer experience. Elsewhere in our municipal business, contract extensions were agreed in 2020 for the
Kensington and Chelsea contract and the Warwick contract.

The Group continued lo see strong results from its Energy business in 2020. The turbines at the facilities in Wilton and
Comwall both performed well following some difficulties experienced in the previous year. Lines one and two at the
Teesside facility also enjoyed a strong year, thanks to high tonnages processed and megawatt hours generased.

The Group's [ouschold Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) were temporarily shut at the start of the COVID-19 pandemic,
until Government guidance allowed such facilities to re-open under strict social distancing protocol. Transfer station and
landfill assets were impacted 1o a lesser degree by lower tonnages. Qur Material Recyching Facilities (MRF) were also
impacted by changes in waste mix resulting from the pandemic, as well as low market driven prices for certain
recyciables. During 2020 the Group saw the first full year of the contract with Greater Manchester Waste Authority
(GMWA), with SUEZ handling 1.2 million tonnes of GMWA waste. Development work was completed in 2020 on the
Longley Lane facilities that service this contract, with further development of the Raikes Lane Energy from Waste facility
and Reliance Street Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) facility continuing into 2021,

The Group received £3.5m from the UK Government’s Coronavirus job retention scheme in 2020; mainly related to
employees working in our collections business and support services. The Group’s management committee took the decision
to boost the income of employees placed on furlough to 100% of their normal salary, with the Government scheme covering
80% of narmal salary up 0 £2,500 per month. [n addition, an extension to the wellness program was implemented across
the Group to provide support for all employees covering topics from mental health through to financial management.
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Group strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The Group and a key customer are in disagreement as when the facilities delivered by SUEZ under a specific contract have
reached “Acceplance” and thus the Group is entitled o increased contraciual payments. The Group is seeking to resalve the
matter in line with the contract’s dispute resolution provisions. The Group has taken a prudent approach and made an
impairment of ity concession debtor in relation to this contract of £25.9m in 2020 (see note 13). The impairment of the
concession debtor, recognised in the income statement, in the opinion of the directors is sufficient te cover the maximum
exposure te the Group whilst the dispute resolution process is ongoing.

The health and safety of our employees and customers is paramount, never more so than during the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic. In addition to adapting to and managing the risks associated with the pandemic, we achieved some notable health
and safety successes in 2020, including deploying energy isolation standards UK wide and deploying bodycams at 70% of
our HWRCs. Over 550 managerial safety visits took place despite the pandemic and our first health and safety training centre
was opened. The UK team also won global SUEZ awards for best health and safety cultural transformation and for best
wellbeing programme.

On 29 June 2021, the Board of Directors of the Group's ultimate holding company (SULZ SA) accepled an offer from Veolia
to purchase 100% of its share capital. Subject to approval from the relevant competition authorities, the takeover of SUFZ
by Veolia will create the opportunity to become the global champion in ecological transition.

Principal risks and uncertaintics

The SUEZ Recycling and Recovery (R&R) UK Group (the Group) has eslablished a risk committee that evaluates the main
risks facing the Group and the measures in place to manage those risks. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are broadly grouped as: operational risks, competitive risks, tegislative risks, health and safety risks and financial
Instrument risks.

Qperational risks
The Group’s cperations inyvolve some major public sector contracts, ranging trom periods of 7 to 25 vears or more, where
default on the contract may result in substantial compensation payments to the ciient.

Long-term contracts also expose the Group to the risk that the contract’s revenue profile over the life of the contract may
not be sufficient to compensate the Group for unforeseen cost increases, and hence losses may result. The Group has put in
place rigorous tender approval procedures 1o cnsurc all risks are properly considered. The Group's management and review
procedures are aimed at ensuring any preblems are identified at an early stage and steps are taken to mitigate any losses
arising.

The success of the Group’s operations is dependent upon the recruitment and retention of good quality staff. The Group’s
strategy seeks to make the Group the preferred employer in the waste management sector through its employment policies.

Comperitive risky
Part of the Group's business involves contracts with local authoritics which are subject Lo periodic competitive tender.
Renewal of these contracts is uncertain and based on financial and performance critetia.

The remaining business relies upon short-term contracts and non-contractual business from industrial and commercial
custorners, which is subject to normal price competition in the open market.

Legislative risks

The waste management business is subject to strict legislation and regulation. These standards are subject to continuous
revision. Compliance with new standards can impose additional costs on the Group, and failure to comply could result in
heavy penalties. The Group’s management systems aim to ensure compliance with all relevant regulations.

Health and safety risks

The Group acknowiedges that its employees working within the waste management industry face significant potential
hazards in their everyday work. The Group makes every effort to ensure that its health and safety policies are of the highest
standard, are fit for purpose and are strictly adhered to on a daily basis.
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Group strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Financial instrument risks
The Group has cstablished a risk and financial management framework whose primary objectives are to protect the Group
from events that hinder the achievement of the Group’s performance objectives.

Use of derivatives
On certain major contracty, (Group associdle comparnics use interest rate swaps in respect of the related funding to reduce
exposure to interest rate movements,

Expusure to price, credit, iguidity and cash flow risk

Price risk arises on financial instruments because of changes in, for example, commodity prices or equity prices. The
Group’s major joint venture and associated invesiments, which the Group does not intend to sell in the short-term, are held
at net asset value and are therefore not exposed to price risk.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. Group policies are aimed at minimising such losses, and reguire that deferred terms are only granted
to customers who demonstrate an appropriate payment history ang satisfy credit worthiness procedures.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assoctated with financial liabilities.
Cash flow risk is the risk of exposure to variability of cash flows relating 10 a recognised assel or lability such as future
interest payments on a variable rate debt. The Group produces long-term cash forecasts and monitors cash flows against
these on a daily basis to ensure all financial obligations may be met as they fall due. Group funding requirements are
pericdically agreed with the SUEZ Group.

The Group has ¢ntered into fixed rate swap agreements and forward exchange contracts to avoid volatility in interest charges
on its lcans and volatility of exchange rate movement on payments made in foreign currencies. The Group has applied hedge
accounting requirements to account for the derivative swap agreements and the associated loans; their relationships being
accounted for as cash flow hedges — see note 25 to the accounts.

Matters covered in the Directors’ report

As permitted by Paragraph 1 A of Schedule 7 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008, certain matters which are required to be disclosed in the strategic report have been omitted as they are
included in the directors” report. These matters relate o information concerning environment matters.

COVID-19

Operational update: Qur industrial and commercial business felt the biggest hit. All of our Energy from Waste facilities
(EfW) continued 1o run, our MRFs saw increased volumes and our local authority contracts were all operating. HWRCs
mostly re-opencd after initial closure, with customers and residents in the vast majority complying with the social distancing
measures that we have implemented.

The next step will be to start having discussions with our local authority customers about potentially increasing the range of
produets we take in, which will be determined on a site-by-site basis.

Trading: The Trading Back Office and Distribution teams operated virtually and despite the drop in 1&C volumes across
the UK, our traders were busy — we saw Dry Mixed Recyclables (DMR} volumes through our MRFs and balers hold up
well. Many of the packaging suppliers to the food, drinks and online retai! industries had increased demand for our recycied
products. The paper and cardboard packaging fibre mills were particularly desperate for materials during the COVID-19
crisis.

Facililies: Safe Work Procedures were approved and published for both Maidenhead and Weston offices, which were set
up with social distencing measures/procedures, signage and sanitizing/cleaning materials, etc., ready for employees return
to the office on an ad hoc or permanent basis.



SUEZ Hecycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid

Group strategic report (continued)
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Employee survey: SUEZ Group ran a short confidential survey for employees to gather feedback on how the business had
handled COVID 19. The 549 UK employees responding to the Group survey felt that they received hetter communications
but were slightly more anxious about the pandemic than employees in other countries. Foliowing this a UK project recovery
survey was sent out to ali employees and the initial results mirrored that of the Group survey, The Project Recovery team
will use the results to capture good practices and improve the way business is done moving forward.

Fleet: The slight easing of lockdown in May saw an increase in vehicle movements with company cars being delivered and
terminated car leases being collected. We took delivery of our first three Clectiic MG ZS company cars and 52 Tesla. We
booked more home installations with our approved supplier for the EV home charging units.

MIS: In 1 week at the starl of lockdown there were almost 600 calls to our Service Desk, who have continued to belp our
colleagues with the new ways of working by sending out regular tips to help get the most from some of the tools now being
used. To assist with working in flexible ways, MIS investigated the use of SUEZ apps on personal devices to provide more
options to aceess email and internally developed apps on employee’s awn phones, while still maintaining the security of the
business’s data. Working with our main business application suppliers we ensured the business made the required changes
to mect the demands of COVID-19 working. and also to ensure we can return to normal working methods once operations
pick up again.

Payroll and Pensions: We successfully incorporated around 400 new Somerset employees into our systems, administered
annual benuses as well as an annual sakary review {(ASR) for manual workers and the living wage increase (SULZ" minimum
of £8.82 per hour). We have audited salary sacrifices for pensions, Lo ensure no employee breaches national minimum wage.

Compensation and Benefits: On the reward front, the employee benefit, MyWagez, which provides employees with the
opportunily to draw down up to 30% of salary aiready eamned in the current month before pay day. should they be in financial
difficulty, was launched. We also partnered with TransavelUK, a credit union, to encourage employees to save regularly,
administered via payroli.

Section 172 statement

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) (as amended by the Companies {Misceilancous Reporting)
Regulations 2018), the Directors provide this statement describing how they have had regard to the matters set out in section
172(1) (a) - (F) of the Act. when performing their duty to promote the success of the Company, under section 172.

S17211j(a} The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

The focus of the Board has been to drive the Group towards achieving is goals alongside its commitment to having a
workforce that more accurately reflects society and has developed challenging targets 1o achieve this, which includes
overhauling our parental leave and flexible working policies, improving the gender pay gap and collaborating across the
sector to help drive sector-wide change.

The Directors of the Company delegated certain duties and responsibilities to various committees and received regular and
timely information (at least monthly) on al! key aspects of the business including health and safety, risks and epportunities,
the financial performance of the business, strategy, operational matters, market conditions and sustainability,

These are all supporied by Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) which were part of a list of strategic priorities identified to
be reviewed by management throughout 2020.

Early in March the Board closely monitored developments of COVID-19 to ensure business continuity and preparedness in
the case of a Coronavirus epidemic. They set up a strategic UK task group which follows a standard protocol used by
organisafions in response to emergency situations. The lead decision making body for this group is the Gold Command,
comprising the OpCom, Head of Health and Safety, Head of HR Operations, Legat Director and Communications Director,
who monitor and respond to the situation on an ongoeing basis. This group worked within the advice from the SUEZ Group
and Public Health England, having daily calls to determine any actions needed.

In addition, six Silver Command teams for cach of our four regions, Weslon, and Maidenhead comprising the Gold
Command members, Regional Directors and local health and safety, communications and HR representatives were set up.
These groups alse liaised on a regular basis as the need required. These groups met daily at the height of the crisis.

4
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Group strategic report (continued)
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S172¢0)h) The interests of the Company s employees

How the directors promote the interests of the Company’s employees are sct out within the Engagement with employees
section of the Directors’ report (page 8).

N172(1)(c) The need to foster the company 's business relationships with suppliers. customers and others

How the direclors promote the need w fosler the company”’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others is
sct out in the engagement with supplicrs, customers and others of the Directors’ report (page 9).

SI172(1)(d) The impact of the Company's operations on the communily and the environment

The Company and our employees believe it is important to give something back to the communities we work in and to
society. We do this in many ways. We organise these activities into a programme under our corporate responsibilily strategy
and call it *Giving Something Back”, 'The programme aims 1o encourage cveryone in the Company to get involved with local
causes and support national charities.

Engagement normally takes place locally through our local offices and sites, with many individuals from our operations and
the planning team having regular two-way conversations with community representatives to discuss our activities and the
local topics that impact us both, including via the Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM ) programme.
STEM helps to improve the learning and career prospects of local people, at the same time as enhancing our reputation and
helping to develop our people and our education programmes. community consultation and involvement through various
community Trusts, however all activities were put on hold due to COVID-19.

We mainiain a coflaborative and positive relationship with our key environmental regulators, the Environment Agency and
Scottish Environmental Protection Agency. More details of how the Company promotes its purpose of protecting our
environment by putting waste to good use are set out in the Environmental matters section of the Direclors’ report (page 10).

The UK Group can now understand and demonstrate the social value created at the level of a local community or individual
project, as well as company-wide. We know the social value commitments we make to our clients and this is guiding
decision-making across the business.

As part of the Group’s drive Lo beeome more sustainable, the Board decided 1o change the “Sustainable Development and
Social Value® critical success factor (CSF) 10 “Sustainable Environment’. to create a clearer statement about the overarching
purpose of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK and our vital role in creating a more sustainable future as set out by the
United Nations through the 17 Sustainable Development Goals {(SDGs), which we have adopted to help drive what we do
as a company in the area of Sustainable FEavironment.

The UK Group agreed a renewable electricity self-supply deal, which enables SUEZ to power UK operations with 100%
owTl-generated rerewahle electricity, thereby reducing the businesses impact on the environment when compared with non-
renewable sources.

As a net exporter of energy with over 300 sites in the UK, many of which generate renewable electricity. SUEZ aims to
close the loop by using own-generated electricity from its facilities to power all business operations in the UK. The renewable
eleciricity generated by us is a combination of energy generated from EfW facilities and landfill gas sites - SUEZ exports
over 500 GWh of electricity every year. In the UK, approximately 10% of the renewable electricity generated is supplied
directly back to the business through the self-supply deal.

SUE?. receives a Renewable Energy Guarantee of Origin (REGO) certificate for every megawatt hour of renewable
electricity generated, from the regulator, Ofgem, which verifies that the electricity is 100% renewable. SUEZ is able to
supply the rest of the business and operations at all of its 300 sites across the UK with own generated renewable power, This
includes self-supply to large Private Finance [nitiative (PFI) waste contracts, including Greater Manchester, Comwall and
West London. In 2020, SUEZ generated over 1.4 million MWh of electricity, which is enough te power approximately
350,000 bomes.
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S§172¢1)(e} The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

Every person in their day-to-day behaviour, in the way they perform their roles and responsibilities and in their business
dealings with others, must apply the Group's values and ethics principles, which are:

- Acting in accordance with laws and regulations.
- Establishing a culture of integrity.

- Behaving fairly and honestly.

- Respecting others,

Each person should seek to use good sense and judgment in his/her actions, which is why it is norma! and natural to discuss
the ethical questions and dilemmas inherent in any professional activity with colleagues and line managers. Identifying
ethical conduct and avoiding mistakes arc processes that contribute to the pursuit of excellence. Ethical behaviour requires
both personal and team commitment.

SI72(1)(f} The need to act fairly as between members of the company
For the year under review, we have been a wholly owned subsidiary within the SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK Group

(the Group). With the Chief Executive Office and the Finance Director also sitting on our board. Retevant decisions of the
Board are also discussed, where relevant, at the mmeetings of the Parent Company board.

This report was approved by the board on jnh Mov Zo Tl and signed on its behalf.

C Thorn
Director
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Directors' report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2520,
Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Dircetors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Internalional Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™).
Under company law the direclors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

=  state whether IFRS have been followed subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statemnments;

s provide additional disclosures when compliance with specific requirements in [FRS {s insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position
and financial performance; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concerm basts unless it is inappropriate o presume that the company
will continue in business.

The directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. Fhey are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Principal aclivities
The principal activity of the SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd Group ("Group"} is waslc management,
including the provision of municipal services, industrial and commercial waste collections, landfill, recycling waste and the

operation of energy-from-waste facilitics. The Group forms the United Kingdom waste management business of the SUEZ
Group.

Results and dividends

The group loss for the year amounted 0 £10.698,0006 (2079 Profir £13,883,000).
No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2020 (20/9: £¥il).
Directors

The directors who served during the year and to the date of this report were:

t Duval (Resigned 31 October 2021)

D Palmer-Jones (Resigned | January 2020, re-appointed 3 July 2020}

J Boursier (Resigned 22 May 2020)

J Scanlon (Appointed 1 January 2020
C Thom (Appointed 1 February 2020)
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Going concern

The SUEZ UK R&R Group, glong with its ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, has considerable financial resources together
with lang term contracts with 2 number of customers across different geographic areas and within different sectors of the
recycling industry. As a result, the directors believe that the SUEZ R&R UK Group is well placed to manage its business
risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook,

The UK Group benefits from a current account overdiaft fucilily (tom hie French parent company (SUEZ SA) to finance
day to day activities. It also benefits from long term loans from SUEZ SA regarding some of our major infrastructure
projects. The loans are subject to contractual terms and repayment schedules in line with the operational activities of the
infrastructure that they finance. We consider it highly unlikely that SUEZ SA would cancel the overdraft facility that we
have in place. However, should this unlikely event occur, we believe we would be able to replace the facility with extemal
debt thanks to our strong credit reputation and relationships with UK banks. The UK Group currently has no external (non
Group) loans in place. The impact of COVID-19 has been assessed and factored into the cashflow forecasts for the UK
Group and it is not expected that the overdrafi facility with SUEZ SA will be breached in the next 12 months, with adequate
headroom for any unknown events also.

Having made enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resources
to continue in operational cxistence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adapt the going concern basis
in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Directors' indemnity

The Company has granted indemnity 1o one or more of its directors against liabilities in respect of proceedings brought by
third parties. subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006, Such qualifying third party indemnity provision
remains in force as at the date of approving the directors' report.

Future developments

The Group will continue to seek to grow through new contracts, hoth for industrial and commercial and public customers.
Engagement with employccs

The Group communicates to 1ts employees through presentations, internal group-wide emails, newsletters, social media
channels and blogs on our intrangt. An annual employee conference, delivered at various local locations around the country,
provides a brieling on the Group's performance, gives an update on any initiatives that are being introduced and allows
individuals to raise questions and concerns.

The Board engaged directly with employees throughout 2020 via emails, social media channels and the blogs on our intranet,
all of which give our employees the opporfunity to interact with members of the Board and senior management.

U Say, the Group's cmployee cngagement survey, is carried oul anonymously every two vears to highlight arcas of
improvement. The Board considers the results of all employee engagement surveys a good barometer of the workforce’s
confidence in the Group’s strategic direetion, optimism in the future and carcer opportunities.

In 2020, SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK was ence again included as one of The Sunday Times 25 Best Big Companies
To Work IFor’, taking 23rd spot on the prestigious and highly competitive 2020 list because the Company stoed out dug o
our good levels of employee engagement and satisfaction in the 2019 survey, helping to raise £20,000 for our charity parmer
Macmillan Cancer Suppeort.

The CEO, Chief Human Resources Officer and members of the senior management team had calls with the SUEZ UK Works
Council (SWC) to discuss all matters relating to COVID-19 and the Board™s planning to ensure the Board responds to all
matters that are important to all its employees.
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In 2020, duc to social distancing. the Board's emphasis was on keeping employees engaged and in touch with each other
through the various ways in which employees could keep up to date with key news relating to the business, give feedback
and keep in touch with each other; including:

e Communications from the CEO by email messages. webinars and videos that were also made available on
YouTube.

*  Your line manager — who provides employee feedback via members of the silver command.

s Members of the silver and gold command  via phone, emal! and the dedicated email address.

e SWC - the SWC representatives continued to make themsclves available to take employee feedback and
pass this back to the Board.

*  Yammer — the social networking tool, also available on a smartphone, enabled employees to keep in touch,
neiwork and share ideas. This tool was taken up by a large number of staff from all parts of the business
posting, replying and supporting each other during these unusual times.

*  Microsoft teams — the Office 365 app that has a range of tools designed for remote working via a chat
function enabling video calls with multiple people and used for team catch ups and training,

* Intranet, SUEZ Life, regional newsletiers, me.suez.

Text messaging.

As well as COVID-19 updates, health and safety updates, wellbeing communications and communications on company
matters not relating to the virus, we are very keen o share examples and stories from around the business and especially
from the frontline.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others

Customers
The Board engages with key customers and clients through the Regional Directors who provide the Board with regular
information about customers in various reports praduced throughout the business by the commercial and management teams.

During 2020, the group received thanks and praise coming in from our customers and residents via its social media channels,
and staff from our collection contract with East Devon which highlighted the Company providing critical front line services
on the BBC “One World: Together at home™ concert.

Supplicrs

The Group primarily engages with our suppliers via its website and procurement teams, as well as through other business
support functions including the commercial and legal teams.

The Board receives information through vatious Group's beard reports produced throughout the business,
Other stakeholders

Otker key stakeholders include the Government, Regulators and l.ocal Authorities and due to COVID-19, face-to-face
meetings and site visits were replaced by video-conferencing and calls.

The Chief Executive, some directors and senior managers had calls with members of Government, other political parties and
senjor officials to provide an overview of the recycling and recovery industry and to provide feedback on potential changes
being considered by the Government.

Rebecca Pow MP, the Parliamentary Under Secretary of State at Defra and whose role oversees recycling and waste
management, wrote a letter to all those who work in our industry in which she states how enormously grateful she is for al}
we are doing and adds how proud she is of the commitment shown by the thousands of employees in our industry to the
services we provide which is helping keep the country going.

The leader and chief executive of Warwick District Council published a press release which included praise for our teams.
Our employecs perform a critical role as key workers and the Board was pleased to see all our employees’ efforts being
recognised by the Government,
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The Group’s business is heavily regulaled with a large number of our key clients being local authoritics. We perform
customer engagement surveys and the performance of the business is regularly reported to the Board and OpCom on a
monthly basis. The findings are used to improve customer engagement with knowledge being shared across the Group. On
all large contracts, the Group hosts local community events to engage with local stakeholders.

Environmental impact

Statement of carbon emissions in compliance with Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR) covering energy use
and associated greenhouse gas emissions relating to gas, electricity and transport, intensity ratios and information relating
to energy efficiency actions,

Current reporting year 2020

Total energy consumption used to cakculate emssions (kwh} 6621617359
Envssions from the combustion of landfill gas & biogas {{CO2e} (Scope 1) 40
Emssions from combushon of gas {(tCO2e) (Scope 1) 4,803
Eméssions from combushon of fuel for Fanspont purposes (tCO2e) (Scope 1) £5.328
Emissions from business ravel in rental cars or empioyee-owned vehicles 690
where company is respansible for purchasing the fuel (tCO2e) (Scope 3)

Emussions from purchased electricity ({CO2e) (Scope 2, locaton-based) 17,381
Total grass COZe ((1CO2e) 863,843
intensity ratio: tC0O2e gross figure 0.08

Methodology
Carbon emissions reported using the GHG Protecol Corpoerate Accounting and Reporting.

Standard Revised Edition together with the carbon conversion factors published by the UK™s Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BELS) in July 2020, Where UK Government factors are unavailable, the Entreprises pour
I'Environnement {EpE) Protocol for the Quantification of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Waste management Activites -
Version 5 - October 2013 tool has been used which has the 'Built on the GHG Protocol' label.

Enerpy Efficiency Action

s Litilisation of Supatrak to promote route and driver efficiencies.

e Introduction of electric vehicles into our company car scheme with 100 orders placed.

* rialled an electric Refuse Collection Vehicle.

» Introduced 4 electric vehicle charging points at our Suffolk EFW to support the transition to an electric
company car fleet,
Commenced the roll out of environmental awareness training to all employees.
Reduced travel and increased digital meetings.

» [ntroduction of a sustainability champions network & 10 sustainability principles including a focus on
reduced resource consumption.

¢ Introduction of an employec app, the Sustainable Environment Activity Tracker 1o encourage employees to
log sustainability initiatives and to undertake further actions linked to reducing resource consumption.

s  Conducted a number of internal/external webinars on decarbonisation to raise awareness and knowledge
across the value chain.

* Increased the waste throughput capacity of Suffolk EFW by 26,000 tonnes, in turn increasing electricity
generation by 11,000MWh.

» Introduced digital technologies to spot non-conforming wastes at our West London Transfer Station in order to
reduce hlockages and downtime and associated resource consumption for plant restarts.

» Improved the purchasing process associated with chemicals to order in larger quantities. reduce the
packaging and access to more sustainable products.

10



SUEZ Rcecycling aund Recovery Hoidings UK Ltd

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 December 262G

s Commenced the roll out of the installation of LED lighting across all of our facilities.
e Switched to electronic duty of care paperwork for our 1&C Customers.
» Mol with BP to explore carbon capture and storage from energy from waste.

In the period covered by the annual report, SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK has undertaken a number of energy and
carbon reduction improvement actions associaled with the electricity and fuel we consume, the infrastructure and eguipment
we use, and the training and education we provide to our employees as well as our wider stakeholders in order to further our
efforts towards sustainabie resource consumption and achieving nel zero.

Electricity
*  We have continued to purchase 100% renewable electricity for our operations.
Fuel

*  We have continued te use Supatrak to promote route and driver efficiencies to mimmise fue! consumption.
»  We have promoted the uptake of digital meetings, to minimise travel, associated fuel use and carbon
emissions where possible.

[nfrastructure & equipment

*+  We have introduced cicetric vehicles into our company car scheme with 100 orders placed during the
period, together with installing 4 electric vehicle charging points at our Suffolk EFW to support our transition
towards an electric company car fleet. With regards to our larger fleet, we have also undertaken trials of
electric refuse collection vehicles in partnership with the supply chain,

*  We have also commenced an LED lighting instatlation program across all of our facilities. increased the
waste throughput capacity of Suffolk EFW by 26,000 tonnes, in tum increasing electricity generation by
11,000MWh and, introduced digital technologies at our West London site to identify non-conforming wastes
which will in tum reduce blockages and downtime and associated resource consumption when restarting
the piant,

*  We are also reviewing the digitalisation of our processes and during the period, switched to electronic Duty
of Care paperwork for our 1&C Customers,

*  We have also signed a Memorandum of Understanding (Mol!) with BP te explore the feasibility of the UK's
first carbon capture and storage {CCS) from energy-from-waste {Efw).

Awareness and education

¢ We have introduced our 10 Sustainability Principles and network of Sustainability Champions to put
sustainable behaviours at the hearl of how we operate, together with introducing an employee app for
employees 10 record the actions they complete to encourage and motivate further action. We have also
attended and hosted various internal and external webinars to raise awareness on reducing consumplion
and associated carbon emissions.

Additionally, we have also generated 1,419, 728MWh of electricity and 390,593MWh of heat as a result of extracting value
from the resources we manage.

In 2021, we aim to centinue to improve our energy efficiency and reduce our carboh emissions whilst also working with our
customers and supply chain to help them decarbonise. We intend to continue with the LED lighting installation program,
introduce our sustainable business travel policy and truly embed our sustainability champions network and implementation
of our {0 sustainability principles to further drive a reduction (n resource consumption and our efforts towards achieving net
7Bro.



SUEZ Recyrling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid

Directors' report

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Disabled employees

Applications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the

applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their

employment with the Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. 1t is the policy of the Group that the

training, carecr development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other

employees

Matters covered in Lhe strategic report

As permitted by Paragraph 1 A of Schedule 7 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups { Accounis and Reports)
Regulations 2008 certain matters which are required te be disclosed in the directors’ report have been omitted as they are
included in the strategic report. These matters relate to financial instrument risk.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

. s0 far as that director is awarc, there is no refevant audit information of which the Company and the Group's auditor
is unaware, and

. that each director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company and the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

Re-appointment of auditor

The auditor, Mazars LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006,

This report was approved by the board on (4“' N'W 7o) and signed on its behalf.

C Thorn
Director
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Independent anditor's report to the member of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd
Opinion

We have auditcd the financial statements of SUEZ Recyeling and Recovery Holdings Ltd (the ‘parent company’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the vear ended 31 December 2020 which comprise the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position, the Censolidated and Company
statements of changes in equity, the Consolidated and Company cash {low statements and notes te the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financia! reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006
and:
e giveatrue and [air view of the staic of the group’s and of the parent company s allairs as 41 31 December 2020 and of
the group’s loss ot the year then ended;
s have been properly prepered in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (1K) (TSAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards arc further deseribed in the “Auditor’s responsibilities (or the andit of the financial
staternents™ section of our report, We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical
requircments that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical S1andard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concemn basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Bascd on the work we have performed, we have not identificd any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the parent company's ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authortsed for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to geing concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thergon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. [f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstalements. we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement int the financial stalements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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SUEZ Recycting and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Independent auditor's report to the member of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Ir our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
= the information given in the strategic report and the directors® report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
= the strategic reporl and the dircetors” report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required o repnrt hy exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit. we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if. in our opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received {rom branches not visited by us; or
¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
s certain disclosures of direclors’ remuncration specificd by law are not made: or
* we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.

Respoasibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the dircetors” responsibilities statement sel oul on page 7, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from maleria!
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstateruent, whether duc to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on
the basis of the financial staterments.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below,

brregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above. to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud,

Based on our understanding of the group and the parent company and their industry, we considered that non-compliance
with the following laws and regulations might have a material effect on the financial statements: employment regulation,
environmental legislation, health and safety regulation, anti-money laundering regulation, non-compliance with
implementation of government support schemes relating to COVID-19.

To help us identify instances of non-compliance with these laws and regulations, and in identifying and assessing the risks
of material misstatement in respect to non-compliance, our procedures included, but were not limited to:
* Inquiring of management and, wherc appropriate, those charged with govemance, as to whether the group and the
parent company is in compliance with laws and regulations, and discussing their policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations;
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Independent auditor's report to the member of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

= Inspecting correspondence, if any, with relevant licensing or regulatory authorities;

e Communicating identified laws and regulations to the engagement team and remaining alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout our audit; and

o Considering the risk of acts by the group and the parent company which were contrary to applicable faws and
regulations, including fraud.

We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the preparation of the financial statements, such
as 1ax legislation, pension legislation, and the Companies Act 2006.

Ln addition, we evaluated the directors’ and management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements, including the risk of management override of controls, and determined that the principal risks related
to posting manual joumal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias through judgements and
assumptions in significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to IFRIC 12 impairments, revenue recognition
(which we pinpointed to cut-off and IFRIC 12 accounting}, and significant one-off or uniusual transactions.

Our audit procedures in reiation to fraud included but were not limnited to:
= Making enguiries of the directors and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud;
* (Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud;
* Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud. and
s Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing joumnal entry testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of irregularitics including fraud rests with management. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection
of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
controls.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at www. fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

'se of the audit report

This report is made solely to the company ‘s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companics
Act 2006, Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might statc to the company’s members those matters we are
reguired (o siate to them in an auditor’s report and [or no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do not
accept or assuthe responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members 23 a body for our audit work.
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jonathan Seaman (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

Eiw IDD

Date- NOV 23,2021



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative gxpenses
Impairment charge on property, plant & equipment
Other operating income

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs
Other gains and losses

Share of loss of associates and joint ventures
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation crediv(charge)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Actuarial losses relaied to pension scheme
Deferred tax attributable to actuarial losses

ftems that will be reclassified to profit and loss

Changes in fair value hedge reserve relating to associates
Deferred tax aitributable to hedge reserve movements relating to

associates

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

2020 2019

Note £000 £0060
5 789,163 784,111
(656,212) (669,130)

132,951 i14,981

(110,655) (96,972)

16 (53) (10,180}
6 3,521 29,215
7 25,764 37.044
11 19,581 20,921
12 (28,035) {28,500;
13 (25,846) (13,502)
17 (3.496) (2,054}
{12,032) 13,909

14 1,334 (26)
(10,698) 13,853

3 (7,031) {4.258)
1,880 24

{6,634) (8,937}

2,666 1.519

(19,817) 2,931

{10,698) 13,883

(10,698) 13,883

(19,817) 2,931

(19.817) 2,931

All (ioss)/profit and comprehensive {loss)/income is attributable to continuing operations



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Consolidated statement of financial position
85 at 31 December 2020

Non-current assets

Intangible assets and goodwill
Property, plant & equipment
[nvestments

Investments in associates and joint

ventures
Financial assets

Current assets

[nventories

Financial assety

Trade and other receivables
Corporation tax receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities

Interest bearing foans and borrowings

Trade and other payables
Corporation tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current Liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Other non-current financial liabilities

Provisions for labilities

Deferred tax liability

Provisiotis

Net assets excluding pension scheme liabilities

Net defined henefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Note

15
16
17

17
19

18
19
19
19
20

21
21
21

22

22

24
26

31

2020
£000

161,528
250,620
4

1,824

- 173912

587,885

15,460
7,109
473,448
3,295
19.194

[EE—-A § A

518,506

(35,641)
(340,590)

(376,231)

142,275

730,160

(244,380)

(2,892)
{97.829)

385,059

(19.499)

365,560

2019
L0460

167,290
278,741
4

2,597

202,309
450,941

12,549
6,128
425,737

12,534

EE————_TTE Y

456,945

(35,754)
(291,225)
(1.218)

(328,197}

128,748

779,689

(277.591)
(7)

(9.029)
(94,104}

398,958

(13,639)

385,319



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020 (continued)

2020 2019
Note £000 £000

Equity
Called up share capital M7 373,741 373,741
Share premium account 28 14471 14,471
Capital redemption reserve 28 3457 3,457
Hedging reserve 28 (61,434) (57.466)
Other reserves 28 11,793 11,793
Retained earnings 28 23.532 39323
Total shareholder’s funds 365,560 385,319

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalfon | q" ﬂg vV 1t

C Thorn
Director
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd
Registered number: 03475737

Company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 16 19070 22157
[nvestments 17 538,566 538,566
Financial assets 19 249,671 240,769
Deferred tax 24 477 560
207,784 802,052
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 19 863,067 825,260
Corporation tax recoverable 19 4,970 1,336
Cash and cash equivalents 20 14,177 11136
882,214 §37,732
Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 21 (24,596) (23,327}
Trade and other payables 21 (1055.144) {988, 162)
(1,079,740) f1.011,489)
Net current liabilities (197.526) (173,757)
Total assets less current liabilities 010,258 628295
Non-current Liabilities
[nterest bearing loans and borrowings 22 (204,720) (229,316)
Provisions for liabilities
Provisions 26 - (4061}
Net assets excluding pension scheme assets 405,538 398,579
Defined benefit pension scheme asset 31 2.940 3,306
Net assets —d08 478 401883
Egquity
Called up share capital 27 373,741 373,741
Share premium account 28 14,471 14,471
Capital redemption reserve 28 3,457 3,457
Retained eamings 28 16.809 10216
Total sharcholder’s funds — 408478 _ __  40]88%

The financial statements were approved and aythorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on
-~

= e Mo 2o |

C Thorn
Director
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activities
{Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
flows:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Impaument of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance income

Finance costs

Other gains and losses

Share of profit of an associate and 2 joint venture
Movements in provisions and pensions

Working capital adjustments:

[ncrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments
[ncrease in inventories

{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
[rcrease/(decrease) in balances with group companies
Decrease/(increase) in non-current assets

Interest received

Interest and commitment fees paid

Income tax paid

Net cashk flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangibles

Decrease in concession financial asset

Inctease/decrease in loans provided to associate companies

Dividend from joint venture and associate
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Increase in loans and borrowings from group undertakings

Decrease in lease liabilities
Decrease in bank loans
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Cash and cash equivalents represent
Cash
Overdraft

22

2020
£000

(12,032)

29,226
5,765
53

58
3,012
{16,581)
28,035
25,846
3,496
7,762

(36,245)
(2,911)
(1,660)
24,282

4,707
1,803

(32,812)
(6.814)
21,990

(12,712)
13.917
15,943

3,330
20,478

(23,327}

(12.478)

(35,805)

6.663

12,531
19,194

19,194

19,194

2019
Loou

13,909

29,972
5738
10,180
4

(880)
(20,921
28,560
13,502
2.054
5,454

(20,755)
(3.130)
3,996
1,451
1,720
1,579
130,061)

42312

3912
(25.431)
(5,373)
952
6,284
5,369

(14,287
(33,894)
(14,293)
(48,187)

20,162)

32,693
12,531

12,531

12,531



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Company cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
flows:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense

Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance income

Finance costs

Movements in provisions and pensions

Working capital adjustments:

[ncrease in trade and other reccivables and prepayments
Decrease/(increase) in balances with group companies
(Increase)/decrease in frade and other payables

Interest received
[nterest and commitment fees paid
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from aperating activities
Investing activities

Proceeds [rom sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(Increase)/Decrease in loans to group undenakings
Dividends received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities
Decrease in loans and borrowings from group undertakings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Cash and cash equivalents represent

Cash
Overdraft

23

2020
X000

8,427

2,589
58
2,806
(26,928)
22,336
(361)

(15,716}
49,008
(4,117)
26,640

{20,501)
(6,814)

37,427

(2317
(8,902)
160

(11,059)

(23.327)
(23,327)

3,041
11,136

14,177

14,177

14,177

2019
£000

1018

2,041

4

(34)
(24,692)
24,205
(336)

(2.072)
1.452
(284)

24,692

(24,295)

1,679

64
(3.317)
15,886
160

12.789

(33,894)
(33,894

(19,426)
30,562

11,136

11,136

11,136



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Haldings UK Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

1. General Information

SUEZ Recyeling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd is a private limited company incorporated in England and Wales
and domiciled in the United Kingdom. These financial statements cover the consolidation of the entity and its
subsidiaries. The address of its registered office and principal place of business is SUEZ House, Grenfell Road,
Maidenhead, Berkshire, S1.6 1ES.

The principal activity of the SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd Group ("Group”) is waste management,
including the provision of municipal services, industrial and commercial waste coliections, landfill, recycling waste
and the operation of energy-from-waste facilities.

The Company’s intermediate parent company is SUEZ Recycling & Recovery UK Group Holdings Ltd, incorporated
and registered in the United Kingdom, which owns 100% of the Company ordinary share capital. The ultimale parent
company is SUEZ SA, a company incorporated and registered in France.

The largest group of which SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid is a member and for which Group
financial statements are drawn up is that headed by SUEZ SA. whose consolidated financial statements are available
from Tour CB21, 16 Plas de L'lris, 92040 Paris la Defense Cedex, France.

The financial statements have been presented in Pounds Sterling as this is the functional currency of the Group and
alt values are rounded to Lhe nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

2. Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{“1FRS"} and the Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium sized Companies and Groups Regulations
2008/410 (‘Reguiations’).

The company and consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention,
except for financial instruments that are accounted for according to the financial instrument categories defined
by {FRS 9. The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the Group's accounting
policies (sce note 3).

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid and all
of s subsidiary undertakings ('subsidiaries").

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. [ntra-
group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

No profit and loss account is presented for the company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act
2006. The profit for the year was £6,850,000 {2019- £679,000).
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Going Concern

The SUEZ R&R UK Group, along with its ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, has considerable financial
resources together with long term contracts with a number of customers across different geographic areas and
within different sectors of the recycling industry. As a consequence, the directors believe that the SUEZ R&R
UK Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic
outlook,

The SUEZ R&R UK Group is managed as a singic business on a day to day basis, therefore the Company going
concern asscssment is intrinsically linked to the overall Group’s going concern asscssment.

The UK Group benefits from a current account overdraft facility from the French parent company (SUEZ SA)
to finance day to day activities. [t also benefits from long term loans from SUEZ SA regarding some of our
major infrastructure projects. The loans are subject to contractual terms and repayment schedules in line with
the operational activities of the infrastructure that they finance. We consider it highly unlikely that SUEZ SA
would cancel the overdraft facility that we have in place.

However, should this unlikely event oceur, we believe we would be able to replace the facility with external
debt thanks to our strong credit reputation and relationships with UK banks, The UK Group currently has no
external (non-Group) loans in place. The impact of COVID-19 has been assessed and factored into the cashflow
forecasts for the UK Group and it is not expected that the overdraft facility with SUEZ SA will be breached in
the next 12 months, with adequate headroom for any unknown events.

Having made enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group, and therefore the Company,
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresceable future. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Turnover

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or reccivable once performance obligations
have been fulfilled. Tumover is reduced for valuc added taxcs and trade discounts and commodity rebates, The
methodology and assumptions for the calculations of trade discounts and commedity rebates arc monitored and
adjusted regularly with reference to contractual and legal obligations, historical trends, past experiences and
projected market canditions. The nature of the service provided by the Group means that returns or refunds are
extremely limited. Landfiil Tax is included within both revenue and cost of sales.

Sale of Recyclates

Revenue from the sale of recyclates is recognised when the performance obligation has been met, the goods are
delivered and titles have passed and therefore at a point in fime.

Disposal of Waste

Revenue from waste processing, treatment and land{ili facilities is recognised when the performance obligation
has been met which is deemed to be when waste s physically received at the Group sites.

Collection revenues are recognised at the point of collection from customer sites. For municipal coliections,
revenue is recognised in accordance with guantities specified in the customer contracts.

Operation and maintenance revenue is measured by a contractual fixed and variable fee. Differences between
the amounts recognised in the income statement and amount invoiced at the period end are shown in the
staternent of financial position as a contract asset or contract liability.

Electricity Revenue

Energy generation revenue is recognised at the point that power is supplied to the customer based on the quantity
of units suppiied.
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2.5

2.6

Construction Revenue

Construction Revenue is recognised over time as a proportion of the construction cost to date compared to the
total expected construction cost plus profit margin.

Transaction prices are derived by underlying contractual arrangements. Where multiple performance
obligations exist, the transaction price is allocated on an estimate based on expected costs plus a margin,

There are no constraints for the group over variable revenue considerations.

Goodwill

Recognition of goodwill
Goodwill is measured as being the amount by which the total of:

i. The consideration transfernred,;
il. The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired company: and
iit. In a business combination achieved in stages, the fair value at acquisition-date of the previcusly

held interests in the acquired company;
Exceeds the accounting net balance of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

The amount of goodwill recognized at the acquisition date cannot be adjusted after the end of the measurement
period.

Goodwill relating to associates and joint ventures are recorded respectively under ‘Investments in associates’
and ‘[nvestments in joint veatures'.

Measurement of goodwill

Goodwill is not amoriized but is tested for impairment each year, or more frequently when an irdication of
impairment is identified. Impairment tests are carried out at the Jevel of cash-generating units (CGUs), which
constitute groups of assets generating cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
cash-generating units.

T'he methods used to carry out these impairment tests are described in Note 2.21 *Impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets’.

Impairment losses in relation to goedwill cannot be reversed and are shown under Impairment in the income
statement. Impairment losses on goodwill relating to associates and joint ventures are respectively reported
under *Share of profitioss of associates and joint ventures®.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets other than goodwill are split into concession agreements and other finite intangible assets

Concession agreements

Concession agreement intangible assets relate to amounts paid or payable as consideration for rights relating to
concession arrangements or public service contracts. Such assets are assessed as having a finite useful economic
life of 25 years amortised on a straight line basis from the date the reiated facilities are operational. to reflect
the expected pattern of consumption of the expected future economic benefits embodied in the asset.
Amortisation is recognised within cost of sales on the statement of comprehensive income.
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2.7

1.8

Other finite intangible assets

Other f{inite intangible assets are largely made up of waste collection rounds acquired by the group. Such assets
arc assessed as having a finite useful economic life of hetween 10 and 25 years amortised on a straight-line
basis. Amortisation is recognised within administrative expenses on the statement of comprehensive income.

Property, plant & equipment and depreciation
Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost icss depreciation.

Cost includes the costs that are directly attributable 1o bringing the asset into working condition for its intended
use and include the borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed asscts, less their cstimated residual
value, over their expected useful lives on the following basis:

Freehold property - Jand and E 10 - 30 years, straight line (land is not depreciated}
buildings
Freehold property - airspace - On the basis of airspace used and minerals extracted
Leasehold land and buildings - Lease term
Landfill and quarry engincering - Onthe basis of airspace used and minerals extracted
Plant and machinery - 3 - 30 years, straight line
Motor vehicles - 3 - 15 years, straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 3 - 15 years, straight line
Assets under construction - Depreciation commences upon completion of asset
Investments
Company
Subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.

Group

Associated and Joint venture undertakings

Investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at the amount of the Group's share of net assets. The
profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the associated and joint venture companies' profits after
taxation using the equity accounting basis.

Other fixed asset investments
Other fixed asset investments are measured at fair value.
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2.10

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract, The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to al! lease agreements in which
it is the lessee, except for shori-term leases {defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or iess) and leases
of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

» fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

The lease liability is included in 'Creditors’ on the Statement of financial position. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lcase payments made.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use asscts comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorier period of lease term and usefu] life of the underlying asset.
If & lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life
of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lcase.

The right-of-use assets are included in the ‘Intangible Assets', ‘Plant, Property and Eguipment” and 'Investments’
lines, as applicable, in the Statement of financial position.

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in note 2.21,

As a practical expedicnt, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account
for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has used this practical
expedient.

The company has the right to opt for renewal or terminatior on certain property and equipment leases it has
signed as lessee, and uses its judgment to determine if there are strong economic incentives to exercise them
and therefore include the lease payments within the lease liability calculation.

Financial instruments

The Group recognises financial instruments when it becomes a party Lo the contractual arrangements of the
instrument. Financial instruments are de-recognised when they are discharged or when the contractual terms
expire. The Company's accounting policies in respect of financial instruments transactions are explained below:

Financial assets
The Group recognises its financial assets at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision
for impairment.

The Group assesses possible increase in credit risk for financial assets measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period. For trade receivables the simplified approach is used, and the loss allowance is measured
at the estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of any loss allowance is recognised in profit
or loss.
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2.1

—

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The expected credit losses are estimated based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debiors, gencral economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast future conditions at the reporting date.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31
December 2020 or 1 January 2020 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within
this period.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supporable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Financial liabilities
The Group classifies all of its financial liabilities as liabilities at amortised cost.

At amortised coxt

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including bank borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of any
transaction costs directly atiributable to the issue of the instrument. Such interest bearing liabilitics are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, which ensures that any interest
expense over the period 1o repayment is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability carried into the statement
of financial position.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Derivative financial instriments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recngnised immediately in profit or loss. However, where derivatives gualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged {see below).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial insirument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability, or a highly probable forccast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative
financial instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss.

The associated cumulative gain or ioss is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement in the
same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.
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2.12 Services concession financial asset

213

In accordance with IFRIC 12 and the various provisions of [FRS, the Group has determined the appropriate
treatment of the principal assets of, and income streams {rom, PF] and similar contracts. Results of all service
concessions which fall within the scope of IFRIC 12 conform to the following policies depending on the rights
te consideration under the service concessions:

Scrvice concessions treated as financial assets

The Group recognises a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from, or at the direction of, the grantor
for the construction or upgrade services provided.

Revenue is recognised by allocating a proportion of total cash receivable to construction income and service
income. The consideration received will be allovated by reference Lo the relative fair value of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable. Construction revenue is based on cost incurred plus 2
predicted profit margin.

During the operational stage, cash received in respect of the service concessions is allocated to service and
maintenance revenue based on its fair value, with the remainder being allocated between capital repayment and
interest income using the effective interest method.

The financial assets are held as loans or rececivables in accordance with IFRS 9: *Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed less any impairment losses.

The Group has entered into a number of contracts to provide waste management services on behalf of local
authorities {‘the customer’). The Group is contractually obliged to design. build and operate waste facilities,
including houschold waste recycling centres, materials recycling centres, civic amenity sites, transfer stations
and an Enecgy from Waste plant on behalf of the customer, and has the right to use these facilities to provide
waste management services. The grantor (the customer) has agreed to provide a minimum guaranteed tonnage
of waste to the facility and will pay a fixed price per tonne for this level of waste, with any further tonnage being
subject to a different rate. The Group in return, will remove and treat the waste and is obliged to maintain the
faeilities under lifecycle clauses within the contract,

The Group has the right to both accept and process third party waste, and for some contracts 1o genecrate
electricity revenues at the waste facitities.

There are provisions in the contract for termination (and related compensation) in the event of default or
veluntary termination by the operator or grantor. There is provision in the contract for an extension of the
contract period. The contract specifies that the waste management facilities are to be returned to the customer
at the end of the contract in an appropriate condition.

For some service arrangements the Group has the contractual right to charge users of the public service: to
reflect this an intangible asset is recognised as detailed in 2.6.

Inventories

[nventories relate {o sparc parts and fuel and are valued at cost after making due aliowance for obsolete and
slow moving items, Cost is based on the cost of purchase on a first in, first out basis.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted ar the balance sheet date, and any adjustiment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Defetred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities for
financiai reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences
are not provided for: the initial recognition of assets or lighilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
other than in a business combination. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using lax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will he available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in forcign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit and 10ss account.
Research and development

Research expenditure is written off in the year in which 1 is incurred.

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents the amounts
payable by the Group to the fund in respect of the year. Contributions are made by the company or Group and
the employees 1o a separately administered fund.

The Company is the sponsoring entity for 2 number of defined benefit pension schemes and the pension charge
is based on full actuarial valuations dated between 31 December 2018 and 5 April 2019,

In accordance with IAS 19 'Employee benefits, the service cost of the pension provision relafing to the period,
together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service, is charged to the profit and loss account. A charge
equal to the increase in the present value of the scheme liahilities (because the benefits arc closer to settlement)
and a credit equivalent 1o the Group's long-term expected returns on assets (based on the market value of the
scheme assets at the start of the period) is included in the profit and loss account under 'Net finance charge on
pension scheme obligations'.

The difference between the market value of the assets of the scheme and the present value of the accrued pension
liabilities is shown as an asset or hahility on the balance sheet net of deferred tax. Any difference between the
expected returm on assets that is actually achieved is recognised as other comprehensive income along with
differences arising from cxperience or assumption changes.

Provisions for environmentat and landfill costs and landfill gas revenues
Provisions for environmental and landfil} costs include provisions associated with the closure and post-closure

of landfill sites. The Group estimates its total future requirements for closure costs and for post-closure
montitoring and maintenance of the site after the anticipated closure.
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Closure costs:
Provision is made for final capping and site inspection costs. These costs are incurred during the operating lite
of the site and the Group provides for these costs as the permitted airspace is used.

Fost closure costs:
Provision is made for inspection. ground water monitoring, leachate management, methane gas control and
recovery, and the operation and maintenance costs to be incurred during the period after the site closes.

Post-closure provisions have been shown at net present value. The current cost estimated has been inflated at
2.40% (2019 - 2.90%) and discounted by between 3.18% and 6.01% (2079 - hetween 2.75% and 5.76%). The
unwinding of the discount element is shown in the financial statements as a financial item.

Future revenues from the gencration of electricity from landfili gas during the post-closure period, where
contracts are in place for its sale, are deducted from the provision balances and are discounted in line with the
post-closure provision,

Equity settled share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS 2, 'Share-based Payments', the cost of share options issued by SUEZ Recycling and
Recovery Holdings UK Ltd's ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, to the Group's employees is charged to the
profit and loss account over the performance and vesting periods of the instruments.  The cost is based on the
fair value of the awards made at the date of the grant adjusted for the number of awards expected to vest. The
credits associated with the amounts charged to the profit and loss account are included in retained
earnings/losses.

2.20 Capitalisation of finance costs

2.2

[y

The interest and finance costs attributable to the financing of separately identifiable major capital projects prior
to the date of completion, meeting the criteria of gualifying assets, are capitalised and depreciated over the
useful economic life of the project.

impairment of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

In accardance with [AS 36, impairment tests are carried out on intangible assets and on property, plant and
equipment whenever there is an indication tha! the assets may be impaired. Such indications may be based on
evenis or changes in the market environment, or on internal sources of information. Intangible assets that are
not amortised are tested for impairment annually.

Impairment indicators

This impairment test is only carried out for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for the defined
useful lives when there are indications of an alteration in their valuc. In general, this arises as a result of
significant changes in the operational environment of the assets or from a poorer than expected economic
performance.

The main indications of impairment used by the Group are;

« external sources of information:
- significant changes in the economic, technological, political or market environment in which
the entity operates or to which the asset is dedicated,

- fall in demand;

+ internal sources of information:
- evidence of obsolescence or physical damage not budgeted for in the depreciation/amortization
schedule,
- worse-than-expected performance.
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Impairment

Hems of property, plant and equipment or intangihle assets are tested for impairment at the level of the individual
asset or cash-generating unit as appropriate, determnined in accordance with IAS 36. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount by
recording an impairment loss. Upon recognition of an impaimnent loss, the depreciable amount — and possibly
the useful life - of the asset concemned is revised.

Impairment losses recorded i relation to property, plant and equipiment or intangible assets may be
subsequently reversed if the recoverable amount of the assets is once again higher than their carrying value. The
increased carrying amount of an item of property, plant or equipment attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation/amortization)
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior periods.

Measurement of recoverable amount

In order to review the recaverable amount of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets, the assets are,
where appropriate, grouped into cash-generating units (CGUs) and the carrying amount of each unit is compared
with its recoverable amount.

For operating entities which the Group intends to hold on a long-term and going concern basis, the recoverable
amount of a CGU corresponds to the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use
is primarily determined based on the present value of future operating cash flows and a terminal value. Standard
valuation techniques are used based on the following main economic data:

s discount rates based on the specific characteristics of the operating entities concemed,
» terminal values in line with the available market data specific to the operating segments concerned and
growth rates associated with these terminal values, not to exceed inflation.

Discount rates are determined on a post-tax basis and applied to post-tax cash flows. The recoverable amounts
calculated on the basis of these discount rates arc the same as the amounts obtained by applying the pre-tax
discount rates (o cash flows estimated on a pre-tax basis, as required by [AS 36.

For operating entities which the Group has decided to sell. the related carrying amount of the assets concerned
i written down to the estimated market value less costs of disposal. When negotiations are ongoing, this is

determined based on the best estimate of their outcome as of the reporting date.

In the event of a decline in value, the impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated income statement under
impairments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily redeemable preference shares in the Company or
subsidiaries of the Group are classified as liabiiities.

Goveroment grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants towards staff costs are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs and are presented as a credit in the Statement of comprehensive income within *other operating

income’.
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3. Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, the Group regularly revises its estimates in light of currently
available information. Final outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The key estimates used by the Group in preparing the financial statements relate mainly to the below,; carrying
amounts at the balance sheet dates can be found in the notes as referred to below:

The measurement of*

- the recoverable amount of goodwill and intangible assets. (note 15 — Dec 2020: £161,525,000)

- the measurement of the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment (note 16 — Dec 2020:
£250,620,000).

- the measurement of the recoverable amount of investments (note 17 — Dec 2020: £1,828,000).

Judgement is applied in respect of identifying and measuring impairment. Impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. See note 2.21 for more detail.

The measurement of financial instruments (note 25 — Dec 2020: Financial Asscts: £667,725,000, Financial
Liabilities: £619,590,000).

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible. Where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The
judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial mstruments,

The measurement of provisions (note 26} and the consideration of whether provision is required.

Site restoration and maintenance provision

Estimates used in the post closure costs associated with environmental control after land£ill sites close are
uncertain. The key factors are the volumes of leachate requiring treatment, the amounts of landfill gas
produced hy the site and the amounts of electricity income this can generate, the speed at which the waste
decomposes, and other requirements set out by the environmental regulator. The provision requirement is
reviewed and updated, if required, on an annual basis. The provision is recognised in the financial
staternents at net present value using a discounted rate estimated by management to reflect the time value
of money. (Note 26 — Dec 2020: £56,949,000). A 0.5% decrease to the discount rate would result in
£3,481.000 increase in provision. A 0.5% increasc to the discount rate would result in £4,454,000
decrease in provision,

Maintenance provision

Estimates are made of maintenance costs to be incurred over the length of operating certain facilities under
operations and maintenance contracts. These cost estimates are prepared by technical experts within SUEZ.
based on experience in operating similar facilities along with the specific maintenance needs of each
facility and contract. These cost estimates are reviewed and updated each year by senior management and
are used as the basis for the maintenance provision. (Note 26 — Dec 2020: £38.501,000)

The judgement of whether a contract falls under [FRIC 12 and then the classification of concession
arrangements between the concession debtor model, the intangible asset model and the bifurcated model,
along with the basis on which cash received under concession arrangements is recognised {notes 15 and
16 — Dec 2020: Intangible Asset: £92,454,000, Concession Debior; £109,412,000).
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3

Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

= Pension obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial calculations. (Note 31 — Dec 2020: Liability
£19,499,000). The Group considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate
and documented. However, any change in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting
calculations.

¢ Judgement in applying (FRS 15. The group estimates the fair value of the transaction price allocated to
cach separate performance obligations based on historical experiences of services rendered in similar
circumstances. The main judgement relate to the service concession arrangements see note 2. 12 for more
detail.

e Leases - Lease liabilities are recognised at net present value using discount rate estimated by management
to reflect the time value of money. A 0.5% increase in this estimate would decrease the liability as 31
December 2020 by £3,966,000; a 0.5% decrcase would increase the liability by £3,681,000.

Management judgment is required to determine whether break clauses within lease contracts are likely to
be exercised as this impacts the valuation of amounts recognised under [FRS16. Where an extension option
exists, it must meet the IFRS16 criteria and if 1t 1 determined that the criteria is met then the lease will be
extended, impacting the right of use asset and lease liability valuation.

As at December 2020 the net book value of leased assets were £40,307.000 (Note 16). The lease liability
at 31 December 2020 was £49,512,000 {Note 23).

As weli as relying on estimates, the Group's management also makes judgments to define the appropriate accounting
Ireatment to apply to certain activities and transactions, when the effective IFRS standards and interpretations do
not specifically deal with the related accounting [ssue.

This particularly applies in relation to the recognition of concession arrangements.

At the date of signing the financial statements, the Group has an ongoing dispute with a key public sector customer
(the Custormner). The dispute siems from a differcnt contractual interpretation of the trigger for ‘Acceptance’ of a
New Development Project’s facilitics, including Facility A and Facility B. On “Accepiance’ the Group is cntitled
to start to be paid by the Customer for building these new facilitics (the *Increased Payments™):

e The Group's interpretation is that “Acceplance” occurs on the Works subcontractor achieving agreed
performance tests for each of Facility A and Facility B. This was achieved in 2019 for Facility A and in
2020 for Facility B and was cenfirmed by an Independent Testing Agency (as the Works subcontract
requires) and there is no dispute between the Group and the Works subcontractor in relation fo this.

¢  The Customer’s interpretation is that for the respective agreed performance test to amount Lo *Acceptance”
each of Facility A and Facility B must successfully complete a test of reliability as set out in the Works
subcontract.

The Group accounts for its relevant contract is a concession arrangement under IFRIC12 and has recognised a
financial asset measured at amortised cost. The Group have recognised impainment losses (see note 13) in respect
of the period from the year end date to the date the performance tests were passed.

Reflected in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 is 2 further provision (note 13) for the
impairment of the coneession debtor for £25.9m, which is the value of the Increased Payments in dispute for the
period from agreed performance tests being achieved for Facility B and the related test of reliabilily being
coinpleted. The reliabtlity tests were successfully completed during 2021 since the balance sheet date and therefore
the maximum exposure is known.

The Group and the Custemer are actively seeking resolution to the matter in line with the provisions of their contract.
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4.

IFRSs issued

There are no new 1FRS standards, amendments and interpretations in the current year have had a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Turnover
2020 2019
£000 006
Recognised over time
Construction revenue 3.664 11,963
Recognised at a point in time
Disposal of waste 698,172 683,796
Sales of recyclates 49,524 45,798
Electricity Revenue 37,803 40,554
789,163 784,111

In the case of Service Concession Revenue the customer pays a fixed plus varizable amount based on the contractual
terms. If the services rendered by the company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised, if the payments
excecd the services rendered a contract liability is recognised.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the
period was £17,530,000.

Revenuc recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods amounted 1o
£3,465,000.

At the year end a total of £13,430,000 of revenue is still to be recognised in relation to remaining performance
obligations that have partially been satisfied.

£637,000 of assets are currently recognised in relation to cost incurred 1o obtain or fulfl] a contract under [FRS 15,

Geographical breakdown of turnover is as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
United Kingdom 779,688 773,037
European Union 5,736 4,82/
Rest of world 3,739 5,353
789,163 784,11/}

Other income
2020 2019
£000 Lo00
Settlement claims - 29,215
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 3,521 -
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7. Operating profit

The operating profit is stated after charging:

2020 2079

£000 £000
Service concession costs 3,542 17,496
Amortisation - intangible fixed assets 5,765 5,738
Depreciation of owned property, plant & eguipment 19,226 29,568
Depreciation of right of use assets 10,023 10,599
Impairment of owned property, plant & equipment 53 10,180
Inventories recognised as an expense during the period 23,093 25,645
Foreign exchange losses 143 2
Auditor’s remuneration * 403 438

Auditor's remuneration - audit related assurance services

* Auditors' remuncration relating to the audit of the Company financial statements is £25,000 {2019- £25,000).

The remainder 1s for the audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries of the group headed by SUEZ UK Group
Holdings Limited.

£107.000 was also incurred in relation to the audit of associate and joint venture companies (2019- £105,200).  There
were no non-audit services provided in the year or prior year.

8. Staff costs

Staff costs were as follows:

2020 2019

£0060 000

Wages and sataries 170,972 157,418
Social security costs 18,192 17,222
Other pension costs (Note 31) 16,399 14,818
= 205563 _1§9.458

The average monthly number of employees, including the directers, during the year was as follows:

Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2019
No. No. No. No.
Office and management 1,043 567 1151 631
Operational 4,622 51 4,016 38
,,,,,,, 3,665 618 5168 .. p68

All employees are employed by SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK Limited and paid by SUEZ Recycling and
Recovery Holdings UK Lid.
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9.

10.

Directors' remuneration

2020 2019
£000 £000
Remuneration 2,103 L1130
Company pension contributions 1o defined henefit pension schemes 175 77

The highest paid director received remuneration of £748,000 (2019 - £632,000,.

During the year retirement benefits were accruing to 2 directors (2019 - 1) in respect of defined benefit pension
schemes.

None of the directors exercised options over shares in the ultimate parent company in the year ended 31 December
2020 or the prior year.

Share based payments
Employee Share issues:

Sharing 2014:
In 2014, SUEZ launched a global employee shareholding plan, called Sharing. Details of this scheme are disclosed
in previous SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd financial statements,

The lock up period for this scheme ended in July 2019.

Sharing 2017:

In 2017, SUEZ launched its third global employee sharcholding plan. called Sharing. Details of this scheme are
disclosed in previous SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK [.td financial statements. 30,250 units were held
at 31 December 2019,

Sharing 2019:

In 2019, SUEZ launched its fourth global employee shareholding plan, called Sharing. This employee share issue
programme is part of the policy to increase employee shareholding and strengthen the relationship between SUEZ,
Environment and its employees by offering them the possibility of being more closely associated with the Group's
growth and performance. Two formulas were offered:

A "Classic" formula, which includes a discount and employer contributien and in which the subscriber is exposed to
movements in the share price. In the United Kingdom, a Share Incentive plan (SIP) was implemented. It allowed
employees to subscribe at the average opening price for the 14 trading days between October 18 and November 7
2019 while benefitting from matching shares as well;

A "Multiple" formula, which allows employees to benefit from a leverage effect to supplement their personal
contribution as well as a discounted subscription price. A swap agreement with the back that structures the plan
allows employees to benefit from a guarantee on their persenal contribution and a guaranteed minimum return. In
some countries (especially in the United States), the multiple formula was adapted to local laws and Share
Appreciation Rights were granted as an alternative.

SIP rules required the CEO of SUEZ to set the subscription price at €11.84 in November 2019, The fair value of the
matching shares has been calculated using the method described above. In this case, the shares arc delivered
immediately with no vesting period, but are subject toa 3 year lock-in period. 18,100 units were held at 31 December
2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a charge of £58,000 was recognised regarding SUEZ employee share issue
schemes (2016- £4,000),
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Il

12.

13.

Firance income

Group interest receivable

Interest income from service concession financial assets
Interest receivable from participating interests

Onher interest receivable

Total interest receivable and similar income held at amortised cost

Finance costs

Interest on group loans
Other interest payable
Lease interest

Total interest payable and similar expenses held at amortised cost

Discount on provisions

Other gains and losses

[nterest on pension scheme assets

Interest on pension scheme Habilities

Loss on financial assets held at amortised costs

Other gains

Provision for the impairment of financial assets held at ameortised costs

2020 2019
£000 £0010)

1,728 1523

8,865 10,613

8.932 5729

56 P
19581 20921
2020 2019

£000 L0600

18,714 20,445

2018 3108

1,035 I 674

22,667 25.227

5,368 3.273

28,035 28,500

2020 2019

£000 L000

2,039 2722

(1,981) (2,893)

: (12,631)

- 8,900

(25,904) (9.600)

. (25.846) RN

Tte loss on financizal assets held at amortised costs are net josses in relation to service coneession financial assets and
revaluation duc to changes in timings and amounts of expected cashflows relating to delays in construction and
commencement of operation.  Other gains in the prior year are the recognition of LDs from EPC contractor relating

to these delays.

Provision for the impairment of financial assets held at amortised costs are in relation to disputes as detailed in note

3.
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14. Taxation

Analysis of tax {credit)/charge in the year
Current tax (see note below)
Current tax charge

Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total current tax

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences

Adjustment in respect of prior periods
In relation to defined benefit pension schemes

Total deferred tax

Tax (eredit)/charge on profit threngh income statement

Tax charged directly to equity

Current tax
Deferred tax charge

40

2020 2019
£000 L000
3,543 §77
617 (1,188)
2,926 (311)
(3,904) 2,702
(614) (2,572}
258 207
{4,260) 337
(1,334) 26
(1,880) (724)
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14.

Taxation {continyed)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (20/9 - lower than} the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%

2019 19%). The differences are ¢xplained below:

Accounting {loss)/profit before tax

Profit on ordinary activities muitiplied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19% (2019 .- 19%)

Effects of:

Non-tax deductible amortisation of goodwill and impairment
Expenses not deductible tor tax purposes, other than goodwill
amortisation and impairment

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Non-taxable income

Movement on uncertain tax positicns

Changes in taxation rate

Total tax (credit)/charge for the year

Factors that may affect future tax charges

2020 2019

£000 £000

_ (12,037 13,909
(2,256) 2,643

2,086 1,206

(1,231) (3,760}

- 390

(150) (1)

(1,074) -

1,321 (342)

_  (1,334) 1]

The increase to the UK corporation tax rate from [9% to 25% was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and will be
effective from | April 2023, The change had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, is
not recogniscd in these financial statements,

The estimated impact of the rate change is an increase to the net Deferrcd Tax liability of £1,889,000 with a debit to the
income statement of £2,704.000 and a credit to other comprehensive income of £815,000
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Led

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

15. Intangible fixed assets (continued)
Impairment review of goodwill

The Group reviews at each reporting period whether there are any indicators of impairment in accordance with 1AS 36
Impairment of Assets. An annual impairment review is completed by comparing the carrying amount of the goodwiil for
each Cash generating Unit (CGU) to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is allocated,
first to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill and then to the assets of the cash-generating unit. In the current year all
CGUSs have been valued on the basis of value in use, rather than fair value tess costs of disposal on the basis that it is the
higher of the two valuations.

The key assumptions when calculating the value in use are forecast revenue and costs. Management’s calculation of value
in use has been developed from forecast five year cash flows which are prepared on the basis of past performance, expectation
of future performance and market information and a consistent growth rate thereafler, based on the underlying ussets of each
division.

‘The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of cach CGU’s carrying value. The Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management and extrapolates growth at
2.5% thereafter for 5 years before using the terminus value, using a discount rate of 6.1% {2019: 6.2%). Adjustments are
made for CGUs that have finite useful lives in terms of landfill sites.

Of the total net book value £65,304.000, £54,299,000 relates 1o goodwill on the acquisition relating to United Wasie, the
trade from which is considered to be one CGU. The calculated recoverable value of this goodwill is £196,673,000. Sensitivity
analysis shows that the discount rate would need to increase to 19.9% for the recoverable amount to be egual to the net book
value. Of the remaining goodwill, no significant amounts are attached to any one particular CGLU.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

16.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The net book value of owned and leased assets included as "'Property Plant and Equipment” in the Statement of financial
position is as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Tangible fixed assets owned 210,313 229 857
Right-of-use tangible fixed assets 40,307 48,884
250,620 278,741
Information about right-of-use assets is summarised below:
Net book value
2020 2019
£000 L000
Land and buildings 25,118 28,716
Plant and machinery 2,565 5203
Motor vehicles 12,624 14,965
40,307 48,884
Depreciation charge for the year ended
20620 2019
£000 £000
Land and buildings 3,211 3,558
Plant and machinery 2,549 2 997
Motor vehicles 4,263 4,044
10,023 10,599
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020

16,

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company
Cast

At | January 2019

Additions

Transfers intra UK
group

Disposals

Transfer between
classes

At 1 January 2620

Additions

Transfers intra UK
group

Disposals

Transfer between
classes

At 31 December 2020
Depreciation

At I Jaauary 2019
Charge for the year
On disposals
Impairment
Transfers intra UK
group
At ] January 2020
Charge for the ycar
On disposals
Transfers intra UK

group

At 31 December 2020

Net book value
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Land and Piant and Motor Fixtures and Assets under
buildings  machinery vehicles fittings construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
8,443 6108 3,180 31.669 7.813 57.213
- 212 - 1,358 1,747 3317
{155) 114 (1,757} - (6,122) (7,920)
- 1) (1,255} (138) - (1,394)
{2,965) (2.471) I 064 4771
5,323 3,962 169 33,553 8,209 51,216
i 29 - 2,217 - 2,317
- (74 - - - (74)
- (225) - (31) (2.762) (3.018)
19 - - 1,111 (1,130) =
5413 3.692 169 36,850 4317 50,441
6610 2,340 2,820 23,787 29,607
(59) (222) 20 2,302 2.041
- - (1,251 {137) (1,388}
- 41 - 79 120
(110) 209 (1,420} - - L1321}
491 2,368 169 26,031 - 29,059
28 215 - 2,346 - 2,589
- (181) - 31 - 212)
z {65) - : (65)
519 2,337 169 28,346 - 31371
4,894 1,355 - 8,504 4317 19,070
4,832 1,594 - 7,522 8,209 22,187
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for the year ended 31 December 2020

17.  Fixed asset investments

Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2020

Dividend pald

Share of profit/(loss)

Share of other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2020

Impairment

At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
Net book value
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Other

Investments fixed asset Investment in
in associates  investments joint ventures Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
2,188 4 409 2,601
(3,330) - - (3,330)
1,579 203) 1,376
1,181 - 1,181
1,618 . 4 206 1,828
1,618 4 206 1.828
2158 4 409 2.601

Loans to associates, as disclosed in note 19, are also treated as part of the group’s net invesument in the associate.
The cumulative amount of unrecognised share of total other comprehensive loss, relating to associates’ hedge
reserves, amounted to £3,462,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019 - £2,165,000).

Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of associates:

(Loss) from continuing operations
Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Total comprehensive income

Apgregate amounts of the group’s joint ventures:

(Loss)/profit from continuing operations

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

2020 2019
£000 £000
(3.293) (2,148)
(3,968) 8,418
(7,261) 6,270
2020 2019
£000 £060
(203) 94
(203) 94

A Joint Venture of the group has unrecognised tax losses of £490,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: £136,000).

These have not been recognised because of uncertainty regarding the future profitability of the company,
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Investments
in subsidiary
companies

17. Fixed asset investments (continued)
Company £000

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2420 821,695
Additions -
Disposals -

At 31 December 2020

821,695

Impairment

At 1 January 2020 283,129
Charge for the year -

At 31 December 2020

283,129

Net book value
At 31 December 2020 538,566
At 3] December 2019 . 538.546

Details of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates can be found under note 34.

18. Inventories
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £006 £000 £000
Spare parts 15,460 12,549 - -
= 15460 12.549 - .

In the year ended 31 December 2020 £23,093,000 (20/9: £25,645,000) was the amount of inventory recognised as
an expense by the Group. In the year ended 31 December 2020 the company recognised £nil (2019 £nil) of inventary
as an expense. For both the company and the group £nif has been written down in the year (2019 £nif).

The difference between purchase price or production cost of inventories and their replacement cost is not material.
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19.- Trade and other receivables and financial assets

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 Loo6 £000 £01H)
Due after more than one year
Financial Assets
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 249,671 240,769
Amounts owed by undertakings in which
the Group has a participating interest 25,768 32779 - -
Service concession financial asset 99,714 122,071 - -
Contract assets 48,430 42,752 - -
Other non-current financial assets - 4,707 -
173,912 202,309 249,671 240,769
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £400 £000 £o00
Due within one year
Financial Assets
Service concession financial asset 7,109 6,128 - -
7,100 6,128 R R
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 100,757 102,065 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings 232,461 205,716 838,870 816,779
Conftract assets 103,381 74,917 - -
Other receivables 30,319 37,720 24,086 7,890
Prepayments 6,330 5,319 111 394
473,448 425,737 863,067 825,260
Corporation tax recoverable 3,295 - 4,970 1,336
o 483852 | 431865 __ B6ROIT 426,396

Contract assets are shown separately above in accordance with JFRS15.
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Notes to the financial statements
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19.

Trade and other receivables and financial assets (continued)

Impaired trade reccivables

The Group has recognised a provision for bad and doubtful debts, as at 31 December 2020, Trade receivables with
an initial carrying value of £3,552,000 (2019 £1,567,000) were impaired and fully provided for. Management
consider that these balances are impaired using the expected lifetime model under IFRS 9. The expected credit rate
loss percentage is an average rate, with different expected losses for different customer categories.

The following table shows the movement in expected credit losses that has been recognised in trade and other
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9:

2020 2019
£000 LO00
At 1 January 1,567 1.740
Increase in expected credit losses 2,375 938
Trade receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (390) (1.111)
At 31 December 3,552 1,567

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is, as follows:

Neither Past due but not impaired
Total past due
nor <30 30-60 61-90 91-120 >120
impaired days days days days days
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2020 100,757 80,274 14,644 2,583 1,407 824 1,025
Expected
credit loss 3A4% 3.4% 3.4% 3.4% 34% 3.4% 3.4%
rate Yo
Lifetime 3,552 2,830 516 91 50 29 36
expected
credif
losses
2019 102,065 77,939 14,776 3,781 1,663 1068 2,898

Amounts owed by participating interests:

Amouynts owed by participating interests include loans with gross values of £4.066,000 (2019 - £3,652,000) to
Northumberland Energy Recovery Holdings Limited, £14,975,060 (20119 - £15,530,000) lo South Tync &, Wear
Energy Recovery Holdings Limited, £40,452,000 (2019 - £37,213,000) 1o Merseyside Lnergy Recovery Holdings
Limited, £23,103,000 (2019 - £23.475,000) to West London Energy Recovery Holdings Limited and £11,202,000
(2019 - £10,704,000) to Cornwall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited. These balances accrue intercst at between
8.5% and 1% per annum, the timing of the repayment is at the discretion of the associate but before the end of the
associate's undetlying project agreement.

These loans are recognised net of the Group’s share of any total comprehensive losses, above the Group investrent
in the associates. At the 31 December 2020 the loans carrving values were £4,058,000 {2019 - £3,652,000), £nil
(2019 - £nil), £2,465,000 (2015 - £6,215000), £9,645,000 (2019 - £12,728,000) and £9,815,000 (2019 -
£10,184,000) respectively.
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19.

20.

Trade and other receivables and financial assets (cantinued)

Amounis owed by Group undertakings:

Amounts owed to the Company by Group undertakings due after more than one year related to two scparate loans
£127.073,000 (2019 - £110,325,000) and £122,598,000 (2019 - £130,444,000) which accrue interest at between
591% - 11% and 7.97%. These arnounts are repayable over 6 and 18 years starting from 31% December 2017 and
31st May 2018.

Amounts owed to the Company by Group undertakings due within one year where the other party is a trading entity
accrue interest at 0.75% and arc repayable on demand.

Cash and cash eguivalents

2020 2019
£000 £000
Group
Cash at hank 19,175 12,522
Petty cash 19 g
Total
__ 19,194 _ 1253
2020 2019
£000 Lang
Company
Cash at bank 14,177 i1.136
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21 Current liabilities

Group Campany
2020 2019 202¢ 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Loans from group undertakings 24,596 23,327 24,596 23,327
Lease liability 9,852 11,234 - -
Redeemable preference shares 1,193 1,193 - -
— 35641 37 24596 23327
Trade and other payables
Trade payahles 23,929 41,539 22,805 39,386
Amounts owed to group undertakings 150,109 99,083 934,714 863,615
Other taxation and social security (see
below) 29,990 23,582 27,009 21,448
Other liabilities 15,331 4,008 3,404 2,978
Contract liability 12,390 17,530 - -
Accruals 108.841 105,483 67.212 60.735
— 340,500 294225 _  LOSS144 . 988162
Corporation tax payable - L2118 . -

22. Non-current liabilities (exciuding other provisions and defined benefit pension scheme liability)

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 L0600
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Lease liability 39,660 48,275 - -
Loans from group undertakings 204,720 229,316 204,720 229316
— 244380 277590 e 204,720 220316
Other non-current financial liabilities
Derivative Financial instruments - 7 - -
- 7 -

Loans from group undertakings include three separate loans of £68,872,000, £130,444,000 and £30,000.000 owed to
SUEZ SA (2019 - £84,950,000, £137,693,000 and £30,000,000). These amounls incur interest at 4.97%, 7.97% and
9%, they are repayable over 5, 15 and 19 years.

54



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

23. Leases

The Group has lease contracts for various properties, items of plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Group Company
Lease liahilities are due as follows:
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one year 9,852 11,234 -
After one year but not more than five 23,066 27.848 -
Later than five years 16,594 20,426 -
w.__._—_ﬂ&; - _52513& — . S,
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
are due as follows:
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 L6008 £006 £000
Not later than one year 11,211 12,745 - -
After one year but not more than five 24,775 30.586 -
Later than five years 22,834 24,619 -
— . S8820 67900 ____ . _ - .. ..

The tolal cash outflow in 2020 was £12,553,000 (2019: £13,678,000)

The following amounts in respect of leases, where the Company is a lessee, have been recognised in profit or loss:

Group Company

2020 2020

£000 £000

Interest expense on lease Habilities (1,035) -

Expenses relating to short-term leases ({11,112) -

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-teren

leases of low-value assets (501) -

Income from subletting of lcaschold property 100
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24, Deferred tax

Asset/(liability)/ at beginning of year
Through profit and loss
Through other comprehensive income

At end of year

The deferred tax (liability)/asset is made up as follows:

Accelerated capital allowances
Other timing differences

Movements in deferred tax:

Profit and loss
Accelerated capital allowances
Other timing differences

Other comprehensive income
Other timing differences

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£000 L0064 £000 £000

(9,029) {9.416) 560 847

4,257 (337) (14n (215)

1,886 724 64 (72)

e {2,890) o029 .. 477  _ 360
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£000 £o0n £000 £000

(10,631) (13,163) 751 1119

7,739 4,074 274 {559)

—  Q89) . (909 . . 417 560
2,472 f433) (368) (218)

1,785 96 221 3

1,880 724 64 (72)

6137 .. .. 387 (83) . .. (287

The deferred tax assets of the Company are considered to be recoverable based on the future taxable profits of the
Company. The directors have considered the business plans of the Company in determining that these amounts are
recoverable. The expectation is that the group will make a taxable profit in the future and the deferred tax will be

recovered via group relief.
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15,

Finanocial instraments
(a) Fair values of financial instrumentis

Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other reeeivables, excluding the service concession financial asset, is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the cffect 1s material, less
any impairmcent.

Trade and ather payables
The fair value ot trade and other payables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted ar the market
rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material.

Service concession financial asset
The fair value of service concession financial assets is cstimated as the present value of future cash fows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the balunce sheet date if the cffect is matertal,

Cash and cash equrvalents

The fair valuc of cash and cash cquivalems is estimated as its carrying amount where the cash is repayable on demand.
Where it is not repayable on demand then the fair value is estimated at the present value of future cash flows, discounted
at the market rate of interest at the healance sheet date.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market
rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Derivative financial instrumenty

Interest rate swaps

The Group has entered into intercst rate swaps to hedge against volatility of movements in interest rates. These have been
designated as cash flow hedges.

The fair value of the interest rate swap is based on a mark-to-market valuation. This guote is tested for reasonableness by
discounting cstimated furure cash flows based on the terms and maturity ol each contract and using market interest rates
for a similar instrument at the mecasurement date. The inlerest rales usced 1o discount cstimated cash flows, where
applicablc, are based on onc month and six month LIBOR vield curves at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange contracis

The Group hus entered into foreign exchange contracts to hedge against volatility of movements in exchange rates relating
to construction payments in a subsidiary company. These have been designated as cash flow hedges.
The fair value of the foreign exchange contract is based on mark-to-market valuation.

Risk management is predominately controlled by a central treasury department of the group under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. The central treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the company’s operating units.

There were no reclassifications from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss during the period.

The company’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedge relationships 1o be cstablished. Hedge effectiveness is
determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness asscssments to ensure
that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The company enters into hedge
relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match exactly with the terms of the hedged item, and so
a qualitative assessment of cffectiveness is performed. If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hedged item
such that the critical terms no longer match cxactly with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the company uses
the hypothetical derivanve method is to assess effectivencss.

Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hedge where the cumulative change in the designated compoenent value of
the hedging instrument exceeds on an absolute basis the change in valuc of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk. In hedges of the above foreign currency purchases this may arise if:

»  the timing of the transaction changes from what was originally cstimated, or
e differences arise hetween the credit risk inherent within the hedged ttem and the hedging instrument,
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SUF.Z Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Notes to the finzncial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

25.  Financial instruments (continued)
(a} Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value, into a fair vatue hierarchy based on the valuation
technique used to determine fair value.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices} or indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
2020
Derivatives designated as hedging - - - -
instruments
2019 i - o
Devrivatives designated as hedging - {7 - (7
instruments
- - 7y _ - (7}

The fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments is based on valuations of the instrument providers.
(b} Credit risk
Financial visk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers.

Group policies are aimed at minimising such losses, and require that deferred terms are only granted to customers
who demonstrate an appropriate payment history and satisfy credit worthiness procedures. Debt to non-authority
customers is also protected through credit insurance.

Financia! assets that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers who have demonstrated an appropriate
payment history and satisficd credit worthiness procedures.

Exposure to credit risk

The cartying amount of financial assets represents the Group’s maximum credit exposure. Therefore the maximum
exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was £667,133.000 being the total of the carrying amount of the
financial assets at amottised cost shown in the table shown in (a). This exposure is all in the UK.

The Company is not subject to credit risk from external parties, with all of its receivables relating to balances with
fellow Group companies.

{c} Liquidity risk
Financial risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The SUEZ R&R UK Group, along with its ultimate parent company SUEZ SA. has considerable financial resources
together with long~term contracts with a number of customers across different geographic areas and within different
sectors of the recycling industry. The directors have reviewed the Group’s cashflow forecasts. These forccasts
demonstrate that the Group expects to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

25.  Financial instruments (continued)

{e) Market risk
Financial risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices. such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Group’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instraments. The Group manages interest rate risk by having swapped its
variable rate debt into a fixed rate agreement and manages foreign exchange risk by entering inlo certain foreign exchange
forward contracts.

Interest rate risk

The treasury risk management policy within the associates is to hedge 100% of the variable rate borrowings. At 31
December 2020 100% of the associale variable rate borrowings were hedged.

All material hedging instruments are within associate companies and therefore are not recognised as separate financial
instruments on the consolidated statement of financial position. they do however impact the Investments in associates and
joint ventures line along with Trade and other receivables where the loans 10 associate companies are included in the net
investment. The impact of our share of the associate hedging instruments on the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020 is, as foltows:

Notional Carrying Line items in the Change in fair
Amount Amount statement of financial value
position
£000 £000 £000
Interest ratc swaps (164.802) (78,295) Investments in associates 6.482

and joint ventures and
Trade and other receivables

Ineffectiveness recognised in the Groups share of the results was immaterial.

The impact of the hedging on equity can be seen in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on page 20.

Fxchange rate risk

In the prior year the Group had entered into a forward exchange contract 1o avoid volatility in costs of capital expenditure
relating to one of its subsidiary entities, This agreement constituted a cash flow hedge. With exception to this capital
expenditure, the group do not have any other material exposure to exchange rate risk.

The Company is not exposed to such interest rate or exchange rate risks,
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25.  Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk — Interest rate risk
Profile

At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was

2020 2019
£000 L0046

Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities (229,316) {252,643
(229,316) (232,643)

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2020 there are no variable rate instruments.
(f} Capital management

The Group and Company manages its cash, bank loans and equity as capital. The Group and Company’s principal objective
is to ensure that there is sufficient capital to fund operations and fulfil obligations.

Capital requirements and limings are monitored by the Group and Company management though regular reviews of rolling
cashflow forecasts. The Group has the support of its ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, in the form of a rolling credit
facility that the Group and Company can draw down on as required.

26. Provisions

Site

restoration

Maintenance Other and
provision provisions maintenance Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2020 34,030 4,326 55,748 94,104
Additions 18,141 90 840 19,071
Amounts used (13,670) (2,037) (5,007 (20,714)
Movement on discount - - 5,368 5,368
At 31 December 2020 _._ 38501 2,379 . 56,949 97,829

Maintenance provision

Provision has been made for the costs of maintaining and replacing assets as required under the terms of contracts in place
with Local Authorities. The Group expects for these costs to be incurred for more than 15 years.
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26.

27.

28,

Provisions (continued)

Other provisions

Provision has been made for anticipated losses on a small number of loss making contracts held by the Group. as
well as for other potential litigation against the Group. The Group expects for these costs to be incurred over the next
year. Other provisions also includes provision for long~term lovalty bonuses due to senior staff. This provision is
cxpeeted W be utilised between 1 and 3 years.

Site restoration and maintenance

The Group provides for closure and post-closure costs as permitted airspace in landfill sites is used.  Full provision
has also been made for the Group's minimum unavoidable costs in relation to landfill site restoration and maintenance.
The Group expects for these costs to be incurred over the next 60 vears.

Other

provisions

Company £000
At ] January 2020 400
Additions 36
Amounts used (436)

At 31 December 2020 S—
Other provisions

Provision has been made for long-term loyalty bonuses due to senior staff. The company expects for this to be utilised
between one and three years.,

Share capital

2020 2019
£000 £000
Allotted, calleg up and fully paid
679.528,758- ordinary shares of £0.55 cach 373,741 373,741

These shares carry no right to fixed income or have any preferences or restrictions attached to them.
Nature and purpose of other reserves

Share premiunm gecount
A non-distributable reserve where the premium paid for new shares above their nominal value is recognised.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is a non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred following the
redemption or purchase of the Group's own shares.

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserves relate to the use of hedge accounting as detailed in accounting policy 2.11.

Other reserves
The other reserves is a non-distributable merger relief reserve relating to historic business combinations where
merger relicl was applied.

Retained earnings
The profit and loss account is a distributable reserve made up of retained earnings.
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29.

30.

31

Contingent liabilities

The Group has provided unsecured guarantees 1o third parties in respect of performance bonds. At 31 December
2020 guarantees outstanding amounted to £195.954,000 (2079 - £128,031,000). These bonds are due to expire
between 18 January 2020 and 31 December 2049.

At the 3] December 2020 the Group have contingent liabilities of £36.000,000 (2079 - £45,223,000) as aresult of'a
number of put or pay contracts held.

Joint venture undertakings also have guarantecs outstanding at the year-end relating to performance bonds of
£3,673,000 (2018- £3,696.000).

No liabilities are expected to arise from these contingent liabilities.

The Company has provided unsecured guarantees to third parties in respect of performance bonds. At 31 December
2020 guarantees outstanding amounted to £3,.826.000 /2079 - £3,826.000;. These bonds are due to expire 30
September 2021.

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2020 the Group and Company had capital commitments as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £060 £000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these
financial statements
26,794 15,992 - -

Included in capital commitments at 31 December 2020 is £2.987.000 in relation to the construction of an EcoPark
development in Surrey (2079 - £9.567,000).

At the 31 December 2020 the Group share of capital commitment within associates were as follows:

Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited — £1.300,000 /2079 - £1,600,000)

Pension commitments
Group
Defined contribution pension schemes:

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to £13,153,600
(2019 - £12,046,000).
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31.

Pension commitments (continued)

Defined benefit schemes:
The Group operaies the following defined benefit pension schemes:

SUEZ Final Salary Pension Scheme

SUEZ Contract Services Limited Retirement Benefits Scheme

SUEZ (GB) Limited (Chamwood) Retirement Benefits Scheme

The SUEZ Section of the Citrus Plan

BF! Group Pension Scheme

LWS Pcension Scheme

Hemmings Group Holdings Limited and Associated or Subsidiary Companies Pension Scheme

The Schemes offer both pensions in retirement and death benefits to members. All the Schemes are closed 1o new
members.

The information presented below has been made for the total of these balances. The Schemes are administered by
Trustees and the assets are held separately to the legal entity that is the Group.

The Trusiee board of the Schemes is composed of employer and member nominated Trustees (where the legal
minimum proportion of member nominated Trustees has been upheld). The Trustees are required by law to act in the
best interests of the members of the Scheme. The Trustecs are responsible for the investment policy with regard to
the assets of the Schemes.

The Group considers two measures of the Schemes surplus or deficit. The accounting position is shown on the Group
balance sheet. The funding position, calculated at the iriennial actuarial assessment, is used to agree contributions to
the Schemes. The two mecasures wili vary because they are for different purposes. and are calculated at different rates
and in different ways. The key calculation difference is that the funding position considers the expected retumns of
Scheme assets when calculating the Schemes liability. whereas the accounting position under IAS 19 discounts
liabilities based on corporate bond yields.

The amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, relating to pensions, are based on the
most recent actuarial valuations for each scheme updated by Deloitte to take account of IAS19 in order to assess the
liabilities of the scheme at 31 December 2018 and 5 April 2019.

The Schemes expose the Group to actuaria) risks such as market (investment) risk, interest rate risk, inflation risk
currency risk and longevity risk.

Investment risk

The present values of the Schemes” liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to yiclds
available on high quality AA rated corporate bond vields; in other words. from the position of being fully funded
then if the returnt on the Schemes’ assets were below this rate, it would create a deficit in the Schemes.

Interest risk
A decrease in the corporate bond yield will increase the Schemes” liabilities; however, this will be partially offset by
an increase in the value on the Schemes’ corporate bond assets.

Longevity risk

The present value of the Schemes liabilities are calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of the
Schemes’ members both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the Schemes’
members will increase the Schemes” liabilities.

Inflation risk

The present value of the Schemes’ liabilities are calculated by reference to the future expeeted pension indexation
(both indexation in deferment and pension increases in payment), which will depend on future inflation expectations.
As such. an increase in the expectation of future inflation will increase the Schemes® liabilities.
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31. Pension commitments (continued)

Scheme assets are stated at their market values at the respective balance sheet dates and overall expected rates of retum are

established by the directors following discussions with the Group's actuaries. The liabilities in the scheme are measured on
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

2020 2020 2019 2019

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value of scheme assets 18,348 100,079 16,925 94,088
Present value of obligations {15.408) (122,518) (13,619) (171.033)
Asset/ (liability) 2,940 (22,439) 3306 (16,943

The pension scheme assets do not include any ordinary shares issued by SUEZ Recyeling and Recovery Holdings
UK Ltd or any property occupied by SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid.

The Group’s pension scheme assets will be recovered either through a reduction in future contribution rates or as a

repayment from the scheme when the last member leaves the scheme.

Changes in provisions and assets for defined benefit pension schemes for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
previous year are as follows:

Assets Liabilities Total

£000 £000 £000

AL 31 December 2018 2,885 {13,483} (10,.598)
Actuarial gains and {losses) 424 (4.682) (4,258)
Expense for the period (64) (1.491) {1,555)
Employer contributions 61 2711 2,772
Reclassitication - - -
At 31 December 2019 3,306 (16,945) {13,639)
Assets Liabilities Total

£000 £000 £000

At 31 December 2019 3,306 (16,945) (13,639)
Actuarial gains and (losses) (379) (6.652) {7.031)
Expense for the period (121) (L.977) (2,098)
Employer contributions 134 3,135 3,269
Reclassitication - - -
At 31 December 2020 2,940 (22,439) (19,499

Actuarial gains and losses in the year all relate to changes in financial assumptions.
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31.

Pension commitments (continued}

The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Current service coslt (1,762) (B61)
Net interest cost (166) {694)
Pasl service cost (170} -
Total {2,098) (1,555)
Actual return/ (loss) on scheme assets {7,0235) 4,254)

None of the pension commitments relate to SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holding UK Limited's joint ventures or

associates.

The amounts recognised as other comprehensive gains/losses in the statement of comprehensive income are as

follows:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 7.481 6,687
Experience gains and (losses) arising on scheme liabtlities 2418 1,436
Changes in financial assumptions represent value of scheme liabilities {13.296} (14,351}
Changes in demographic assumptions represent value of scheme liabilities (3,628) 1969
Actuarial loss recognised (7,025) (4,258)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
2020 2018
£000 £060
Opening defined benefit obligation 124,652 115,091
Current service cost 1,762 861
Interest cost 2,5 3,416
Contributions by scheme participants 234 256
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions 3,628 11,969
Actuarial losses/(gains) due to changes in financial assumptions 13,296 14,351
Actuarial (gains)/osses due to experience adjustment (2,418) (1,436
Past service costs 170 -
Benefits paid (5.604) (5,918}
Ciosing defined benefit obligation 137,925 124,652
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
2020 2019
£000 £600
Opening fair value of scheme assets 111,013 104,493
Return on plan assets excluding the amount included in the net interest 2,039 2,722
Actuarial gains/(losses) 7475 6,688
Contributions by employer 3,269 2,772
Contributions by scheme participants 234 236
Benefits paid {5.604) (5,918}
118,426 11013
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31.

Pension commitments {continued)

The cumulative amount of other comprehensive gains and losses recognised was £2,385.000 (2079 - £9.410.000).
The Group cxpects to contribute £3,302.000 to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2021,

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

2020 2019
Equities - quoted 25% 26%
Bonds - quoted 68% 67%
Property - quoted 0% 0%
Cash 4% 3%
Other 3% 3%

All pensions assets are held within Europe.
All pension obligations relate to employees United Kingdom.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

2020 2019
Discount rate al 31 December 1.40% 2.05%
Future salary increases 1.00% 1.006%
Future pension increases 2.10% 2.15%
Inflation 2.10% 2.153%
Average remaining working life of participating employecs 9 years 10 years

A half percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would lead to an increase in pension liabilities of
10%.

A half percentage point increase in the inflation assumption would lead to an increase in pension liabilities of 7%.

The assumplions used in the valuation and sensitivity analysis above are provided by the Group's actuary and used
within the models they provide to the Group.

In calculating the pension liabilities, the directors, upon consultation with the scheme actuary. have used VITA curves
with improvements according to CMT 2018 tables (non-peaked) with a 1.5% underpin for most schemes. For the
Citrus scheme, the VITA curves have been used with a long cohort.

Company

Defined contribution pension schemes:

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the
Company to the fund and amounted to £3.277.000 (2079 - £4,163,000).

Defined benefit pension schemes:

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme: BFI Group Pension Scheme
71

e T

11>



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd
Notes to the financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

31. Pension commitments {continued)

Details of the nature of the benefits, governance and valuation method and assumptions used can be found in the
Group disclosure above.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Asset Asset

2020 2019

£000 £000

Fair value of scheme assets 18,348 16,926
Present value of obligations (15.409) (13,620)
Asset 2,939 3,306

Changes in provisions and assets for defined benefit pension schemes for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
previous year are as follows:

Asset

£000

At 31 December 2018 2,884
Actuarial gains and losses 425
Expense for the period {64,
Employer contributions 6f
At 31 December 2019 3,306
Asset

£000

At 31 December 2019 3,306
Actuarial gains and losses (379)
Expense for the period (121)
Employer contributions 134

At 31 December 2020

2,940

The amounts recognised in profit or loss arc as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Current service cost (154) (27)
Net interest {cost)/income 64 (37)
Past service cost (31) -
Total (121) (64)
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31.  Pension commitments (continued)

Movements in the present value of the detined benefit obligation were as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Opening defined benefit obligation 13,620 12,863
Current service cost 154 27
Interest cost 224 483
Contributions by scheme participants 12 12
Acluarial losses/(gains) due to changes in financial assumptions 1,566 1,243
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions 464 (207)
Actuaria) losses due to experience adjustments a1 58
Past service costs 31 -
Benefits paid (1,083 {889)
Closing defined benefit obligation 15409 o 13620
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
2020 2018
£000 £060
Opening fair value of scheme assets 16,926 13,747
Return on plan assets excluding the amount included in the net interest 188 446
Actuarial gains and (losses) 2,072 1,349
Contributions by empioyer 134 6/
Contributions by scheme participants 12 12
Benefits paid (1,083) {889
— 18349 16926

The Company expects to contribute £135.000 to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2021,

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets and geographical split is not currently
available for the scheme.

All pension obligations relate to employees United Kingdom.

The assumptions used in the valuation above are provided by the Company's actuary and uscd within the models they
provide to the Company.
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32.

Related party transactions

Group:

Under the provisions of TAS 24, the Group is not required to disclose details of related party transactions between
Group companies where 100% of the voting rights are held within the Group.
Analysis of the Group’s transactions with joint ventures, associates and other related parties are detailed in this note.

These are categorised as either sales transactions, purchase transactions or financing transactions.

Sales transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the previous year. the Group undertook sales transactions with related

parties as below:

Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited

South Tyne & Wear Energy Recovery Limited
Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited

West London Energy Recovery Limited
Transactions with joint ventures:

Lidsey [.andfill Limited

Transactions with subsidiaries:

SUEZ R&R Kirklees Limited

Sales
2020
£000

19,119
23,850
17,053
17,467
19,312

157

8,001

Qutstanding
at vear end

2020
£000

24

Sales
2619
L0006

24,462
21,500
20,170
14,604
19,516

138

7,136

Outstanding
at year end

2019
£006

I
737
I
12,425}
37

95

The Group's relationships with Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited, Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited,
South Tyne & Wear Energy Recovery Limited. Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited. West London Energy
Recovery Limited and Lidsey Landfill Limited are described in note 34 to the accounts.

The Group owns 99.9% of the share capital {81% of share with voting rights) of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery

{Kirklees) Limited.

74



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020

32.  Related party transaction (continued)
Purchase transactions:

During the vear ended 31 December 2020 and the previous vear, the Group undertook purchase transactions with
related parties as below:

Outstanding Outstanding
Purchases at year end Purchases at year end
2020 2020 2019 2019
£000 £000 £060 £000
Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited 6,553 - 5,952
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited 11,216 - 7,699 -
South Tyne & Wear Energy Recovery Limited 7,863 - 8692 -
Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited 6,379 - 3,909 -
West London Energy Recovery Limited 7,988 - 9,591 -
Transactions with subsidiaries:
SUEZ R&R Kirklees Limited 4,004 - 3,969 -

Finance transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the previous year, the Group undertook financing transactions with
related parties as below:

Loan Loan
Interest receivable Interest receivable’
receivable/ (payable) at receivable/ rpavablej at
(payable) vear end payable year end
2020 2020 2019 2019
£000 £000 £060 £000
Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited 414 4,066 391 3652
South Tyne & Wear Fnergy Recovery Limited 1,956 14,975 1,902 13,530
Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited 3,239 40,452 2,972 37.213
West London Energy Recovery Limited 2,129 23,103 2,172 23475
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited 1,195 11,202 1,293 0,704
Transactions with subsidiaries:
SUEZ R&R Kirklees Limited 196 25,198 175 22,838
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32,  Related party transaction (continued)
Transactions with senior personnel:
The Group’s key executives were the 7 members of the OpCom (2019 — 6 members)

‘Their compensation was as {ollows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Salaries 1,743 1,407
Qther short term benetits 1,018 786
Post employment benefits 201 237
Share based payments - 89 28
Total 3,051 2,458

Company:
Sales:recharges iransaciions:

During the vear ended 31 December 2020 and the previous year. the Company undertook sales/recharges transactions
with related parties as below:

Sales/ OQutstanding Sales Outstanding
Recharges at year end Recharges at year end

2020 2020 2019 2019

£000 £000 £000 £000
Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited 25 - 25 -
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited 253 - 23 -
Merseyside Encrgy Recovery Limited 215 - 201 -
West London Energy Recovery Limited 25 - 25 -
South Tyne & Wear Energy Recovery Limited 10 - 10 -

Amounts owed to group underiakings:

At the year ended 31 December 2020 the Company was owed £25,198,000 from a subsidiary SUEZ R&R Kirklees
Limited (2019; £22,838,000) on which interest of £196,000 was received in 2020 (2019: £175,000),

33.  Contrelling party

At the year end the Company's immediate parent undertaking was SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK Group
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in England & Wales. The Company is a subsidiary of SUEZ SA, a
company incorporaled in France. The ultimate parent company at 31 December 2020 is SUEZ SA. The largest group
of which SULZ Recyeling and Recovery Holdings UK 1.td is a member and for which group financial statements are
drawn up is that headed by SUEZ SA, whose consolidated financial statements are avatlable from Tour CB21. 16
Plas de L'Iris, 92040 Paris la Defense Cedex, France. In the directors' opinion. the Company's ultimate controlling
party is SUEZ SA.
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34.  Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

a. Subsidiaries

Percentage

Company name Country Sharcholding  Description

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Municipal services and waste

UK LTD ** disposal

Binn Landfill (Glenfarg) Limited Scotland 100 Langfill site operator

Group Fabricom Limited*** England & Wales 100 Holding company

Midland Land Reclamation England & Wales 100 Landfill site operator
Limited

Northumberland Waste England & Wales 100 Landfill site operator
Management Limited

Shropshire Waste Management England & Wales 100 Landfill sitc operator
Limited

SUEZ UK Environment Ltd ** England & Wales 100 Landfill site operator

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Waste disposal and electricity
Kirklees [.1d generation

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Waste disposal and landfill site
Lancashire Ltd operator

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Waste disposal and landfill site
North Fast Ltd ** operator

SHUKCO 346 LTD ** England & Wales 100 Landfill site operator

SHUKCO 347 L'TD England & Wales 100 Waste disposal

SUEZ Recyeling and Recovery England & Walcs 100 Municipal services
South Gloucestershire Lid

SHUKCQO 348 LTD England & Wales 100 Landfill site operator

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Waste disposal and electricity
Tees Valley Ltd generation

SUEZ Recycling and Recavery Isle of Man 100 Energy-from-waste plant operator
Isle Of Man L.4d *

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Waste disposal
Surrey Ltd

Tyne Waste Limited England & Wales 100 Waste disposal and landfill site

operator

Cliffeville Limited England & Wales 100 Landlfill site operator

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Northern Treland 100 Municipal services and waste
Northern Ireland Lid ** disposal

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Energy from waste plant
Suffolk Ltd *

Enggo;ﬁzcyclmg & Renewable England & Wales 100 Property holding Company

SHUKCO [.TD*** England & Wales 100 Holding Company
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34.  Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

a. Subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage
Company name Country Shareholding  Description
SITUKCO 327 LTD*** England & Wales 100 Holding Company
SHUKCO 340 LTD*** England & Wales 100 Holding Company
SHUKCO 320 Limited ** England & Wales 100 Holding Company
A & J Bull Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Attwoods [sracli Invesunents England & Wales 100 Dermant
Limited
Attwoods Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Dorset Waste Management Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Dormant
Alternative Fuels L.td
Gulvain Energy Limited Scotland 100 Dormant
Gurteens Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Hemmings Waste Management  England & Wales 100 Dormant
Limited™®**
L.WS Collection Services Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Nene Valley Waste Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Ryton Waste Disposal Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 303 Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCOQ 323 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 336 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 337 LTD England & Wales 130 Dormant
SHUKCO 3381LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 341 LTD FEngland & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 342 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 343 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 345 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 350 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
Sid Knowles Waste Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Attwoods Holdings Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SUEZ UK Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SUEZ Recyeling and Recovery UK England & Wales 100 Dormant
Pension Plans Trustees Ltd
Sortwaste Environmental Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
United Waste Property Limited  England & Wales 100 Dormant
United Water UK Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Whinney Hill Stone Sales Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Wilson Waste Management England & Wales 100 Dormant
Limited
Wm E Christer (Gravel) Limited  England & Wales 100 Dormant
b. Joint ventures

Percentage
Company name Country Shareholding  Description
Lidsey Landfill Limited England & Wales 50 Landfill site operator
NS NORM Limited England & Wales 50 Nuclear decontamination
Glenfarg Organics Limiled Scotland 50 Waste management services

The group holds 50% of the shares and voting rights of the entitics and therefore have recognised and accounted for
them as joint ventures.
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34.  Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

¢. Associates

Percentage
Shareholding

Company name Country Description

Cornwall Energy Recovery England & Wales 33 Holding company
Holdings LTD *

Cornwall Energy Recovery .TD * England & Wales 33 Waste disposal

Northumberland Energy Recovery England & Wales 425 Holding company
Holdings 1.TD *

Northumberland Energy Recovery England & Wales 42.5 Waste disposal
LTD *

South Tyne & Wear Energy England & Wales 45 Holding company
Recovery Holdings Limited *

South Tyne & Wear Energy England & Wales 45 Waste management
Recovery Limited *

Merseyside Energy Recovery England & Wales 40 Holding company
Heldings L.TD *

Merscyside Energy Recovery England & Wales 40 Waste management
LTD*

West London Energy Recovery Fngland & Wales 33 Holding company
Holdings L.TD *

West London Energy Recovery England & Wales 33 Waste management
LTD *

All shares held are Ordinary Share Capital {including 'A" and 'B' Ordinary Share Capital) aside from SHUKCO
LTI and SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Tees Valley Ltd where both Ordinary Share Capital and Preference
Shares are held.

* Company has a 31 March vear end as key customer is the local authority and thus it is considered beneficial for
the company and the local authority to have co-terminus accounting periods.

** Direet investments of SUEZ R&R Holdings UK Limited. All other investments are indirgct investments.

Registered office of all subsidiaries. joint ventures and associates is SUEZ IHouse, Grenfell Road. Maidenhead,
Berkshire, S1.6 1ES. With exception of:

- Binn Landfill {(Glenfarg) Limited - 15 Athell Crescent, Edinburgh, EH3 8HA.

- Gulvain Energy Limited - 15 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh, EH3 8HA.

- SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Northem Treland Ltd - Cleaver Fulton Rankin Selicitor. 50 Bedford Street,
Belfast. BT2 7FW.

- Glenfarg Organics Limited - Orchard Bungalow Offices, Binn Farm. Glenfarg, Perthshire, United Kingdom,
PH2 9PX.

- SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Isle Of Man Ltd - Isle of Man Energy from Waste Facility, Richmond Hill,
Tsle of Man. IM4 1JH

*** SUEZ Recycling & Recovery Holdings UK Limited has provided the necessary parental guarantees under

Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, to enable the following companies exemption from audit.

Group Fabricom Limited 01677389
Hemmings Waste Management Limited 00676121
SHUKCO 340 Ltd 03301834
SHUKCO L« 01866716
SHUKCO 327 Ltd 03283501
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35.

Post balance sheet events
Veolia Takeover

Since the balance sheet date SUEZ and Veolia boards have announced that they had reached a final agreement on the
details of a takeover which includes SUEZ subsidiaries i the UK, including the Company, forming part of Veolia.
The agreement was ratified at the SUEZ Annual General Meeting on 30 June 2021. This has been treated as a non
adjusting post balance sheet event.

Key Public Sector Customer, New Development Project

Since the balance sheet date. the two facilities (Facility A and Facility B) of a new development project for a key
public sector customer have continued to operate. Facility A has successfully passed performance and reliability
tests for which the Independent Certifier has provided the appropriatc certificates to confirm. Facility B has also
undergone performance and reliability tests, which in the view of the Group’s management, based on the data from
these tests, were successfully passed and the Independent Certifier is expected to provide the appropriate certificates
to confirm in due course.
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